
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
6:30 P.M. – Citizen Academy Graduation 

 
 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING June 11, 2018 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Nicol Ghazi, Islamic Center of Delaware County 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Work Session and Regular 

Meeting of Council held on May 14, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
 APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Special Meeting of Council 

held on May 21, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.   
  
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board meeting held on April 17, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Recreation Levy Sub-
Committee meeting held on February 27, 2017, as recorded and 
transcribed. 

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Civil Service 
Commission meeting held on May 2, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.   

D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on May 2, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.   

E. Resolution No. 18-30, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
sign an agreement between the City of Delaware and the Ohio 
Department of Natural Resources Division of Wildlife to provide 
funding and assistance.  

F. Resolution No. 18-31, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
sign a Memorandum of Understanding between the Delaware 
County Board of Developmental Disabilities and the City of 



2 
 

Delaware to partner in the presentation of Safety Town.  
G. Resolution No. 18 -32, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

enter into an intergovernmental agreement between Delaware 
County through the Board of County Commissioners for backup 
building official services on an as needed basis.  

H. Resolution No. 18-33, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) for the installation and maintenance of the 
proposed traffic signal at US -23 and Hawthorn Boulevard. 

I. Establish June 25, 2018 at 7:35 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-47, an 
ordinance approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Delaware 
Bible Church for a temporary trailer (modular classroom) on 
approximately 7.53 acres zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) and located at 45 Belle Avenue. 

J. Establish June 25, 2018 at 7:40 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-48, an 
ordinance approving a Rezoning Amendment request by Planned 
Communities Inc. for property owned by Francis and Mary Lou 
Wilgus on approximately 89.618 acres (Parcels 419-220-02-005-
000 and 419-220-02-007-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to 
M-1 PMU (Light Manufacturing with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western terminus of 
Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport Road 
and north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway and Ordinance 
No. 18-49, an ordinance approving a Conditional Use Permit 
request by Planned Communities Inc. allowing the placement of 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for 
property owned by Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on approximately 
89.618 acres (Parcels 419-220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-
000) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western terminus of 
Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport Road 
and north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway. 

K.  Establish June 25, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-50, an 
ordinance for Manos Properties for approval of a Rezoning 
Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres 
(Parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002) from PO/I 
(Planned Office/Institutional District) and  R-3 (One-Family 
Residential District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) at 235 and 239 West William Street and 
Ordinance No. 18-51, an ordinance for Manos Properties for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the 



3 
 

Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres (Parcels 519-433-04-
005-000 and 519-433-04-002) at 235 and 239 West William Street.  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamation and Recognition of Brain and Alzheimer’s Awareness 
Month.   

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. City of Delaware DBA Hidden Valley Golf Course at 580 W. William 
Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit Class:  D1 

 
10. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-37, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 89.618 ± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Wilgus Annexation by Andrew P. Wecker, agent for the petitioners. 

 
11. SECOND READING of Resolution No. 18-29, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into a Joint Economic Development District 
(JEDD) contract with Berkshire Township.  

 
12. 7:20 PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-43, 

an ordinance for AEP for approval of a Conditional Use Permit request for 
a new service center building on approximately 50 acres located on the 
south side of Slack Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property 
zoned A-1 (Agricultural District). 

 
13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-44, an ordinance for AEP for 

approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for a 
new service center building on approximately 50 acres located on the 
south side of Slack Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property 
zoned A-1 (Agricultural District).  

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-34, a resolution in support of 

Congressional consideration of a Carbon Fee and Dividend System.  
 
15. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-35, a resolution appointing 

members to the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee.  
 
16. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-36, a resolution indicating what 

services the City of Delaware will provide to 221.341 ± acres of land, 



4 
 

more or less, description and map are attached hereto as exhibits “A” 
and “B” for the annexation known at The Central Ohio Boy Scouts of 
America- Camp Lazarus Annexation by Michael R. Shade, Agent for the 
Petitioners.  

 
17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-45, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to establish additional funding for 
the purchase of road salt, brine application equipment. 

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-46, an ordinance accepting and 

approving the recommendations of the Recreation Levy Sub-Committee 
of City Council and supplementing the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to 
provide funding for recreational improvements and declaring an 
emergency.   

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-47, an ordinance approving a 

Conditional Use Permit request by Delaware Bible Church for a 
temporary trailer (modular classroom) on approximately 7.53 acres zoned 
R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located at 45 Belle Avenue.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-48, an ordinance approving a 

Rezoning Amendment request by Planned Communities Inc. for property 
owned by Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on approximately 89.618 acres 
(Parcels 419-220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-000) from A-1 
(Agricultural District) to M-1 PMU (Light Manufacturing with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western 
terminus of Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport 
Road and north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway.  

 
21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-49, an ordinance approving a 

Conditional Use Permit request by Planned Communities Inc. allowing 
the placement of PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for property owned by Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on 
approximately 89.618 acres (parcels 419-220-02-005-000 and 419-220-
02-007-000) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western terminus of 
Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport Road and 
north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway.  

 
22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-50, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (Parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-
04-002) from PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and  R-3 (One-
Family Residential District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) at 235 and 239 West William Street.   



5 
 

 
23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-51, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres (Parcels 
519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002) at 235 and 239 West William 
Street.  

 
24.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-52, an ordinance for Manos 

Properties for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Wesleyan Inn on approximately 1.09 acres (Parcels 519-433-04-005-000 
and 519-433-04-002) on property zoned PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 239 West William Street.  

 
25. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-53, an ordinance approving a 

request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Preliminary Development Plan 
for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 Single Family Units on 158.3 acres 
zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of Braumiller and 
Pollock Roads. 

 
26. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-54, an ordinance approving a 

request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Preliminary Subdivision Plat 
for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 Single Family Units on 158.3 acres 
zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of Braumiller and 
Pollock Roads.  

 
27. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-55, an ordinance approving a 

request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Final Development Plan for 
Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on 
approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the 
northeast corner of Braumiller and Pollock Roads.  

 
28. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-56, an ordinance approving a 

request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Final Subdivision Plat for 
Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on 
approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the 
northeast corner of Braumiller and Pollock Roads.  

 
29. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-57, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan request by Medrock LLC for Willowbrook Section 



6 
 

2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 single family 
lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One Family Residential 
with a Planned Unit Development) and located north of Boulder Drive, 
south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal 
Street.  

 
30. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-58, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC for Willowbrook Section 
2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 single family 
lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One-Family Residential 
with a Planned Unit Development) and is located north of Boulder Drive, 
south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal 
Street.  

 
31. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-59, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for Heatherton Phase 7 
consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 acres zoned R-
3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive and south of 
Benjamin Drive.  

 
32. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-60, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for Heatherton Phase 7 
consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 acres zoned R-
3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive and south of 
Benjamin Drive.  

 
33. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 

(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 

 
34. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
35. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
36. ADJOURNMENT 
 











































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-30 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF DELAWARE AND THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION OF WILDLIFE TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING AND ASSISTANCE. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The Delaware Police Department is hosting a “Fish with a Cop” event on July 7, 
2018 at Blue Limestone Park.  This agreement will allow ODNR to provide 
funding and services for the event, and is mutually beneficial for both agencies.   
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This is an intergovernmental agreement which required approval by Council.  
  
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
  
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
$2,113.50 in funding will be provided by ODNR. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
  
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-30 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE AND THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION OF WILDLIFE TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING AND ASSISTANCE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Police Department seeks to continually 

partner with and promote engagement opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Natural Resources wishes to partner 

with and provide funding to the Delaware Police Department for purposes of 
hosting a Fish with a Cop event; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are mutual benefits to both the City and ODNR. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign 
the Agreement between the City of Delaware and the Ohio Department of 
Natural Resources, 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

its passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



Page 1 of 6 

SUBSIDY AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

DELAWARE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT 
AND 

STATE OF OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

DIVISION OF WILDLIFE 

This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of ___________, ____ by and 
between the Delaware City Police Department, hereafter referred to as the “Cooperator” and the 
State of Ohio, Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, 2045 Morse Rd, Bldg. G, 
Columbus, Ohio 43229, hereafter referred to as the “Division” or “State.” This Agreement is 
hereby entered into under the authority of Sections 1533.15 and 1533.28 of the Ohio Revised 
Code (R.C.). 

This Agreement is made under the terms and conditions of the U.S. Department of the Interior, 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) grant to the Division, Project No. F-69-P, CFDA no. 
15.605. 

WHEREAS, the Cooperator and the Division both have an interest in providing aquatic 
education programs to make all people more aware of aquatic resources and 
angling opportunities in Ohio and 

WHEREAS,  the Cooperator has made significant progress educating people about aquatic 
resources and educator resources and 

WHEREAS, the results of aquatic education programs will benefit anglers and educators in 
Ohio by making effective aquatic education and angling programs more available 
to all people, and will promote fishing, aquatic life systems, and sound 
stewardship of aquatic resources. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual advantages resulting from such cooperation 
and the respective advantages assumed hereunder it is mutually agreed as 
follows: 

A. THE COOPERATOR SHALL:

1. Undertake the work and activities set forth in Exhibit 1, which is attached hereto,
made a part hereof, and incorporated by reference as if fully rewritten herein, and
provide a written report of activities and results achieved, within 60 days of the last
event. Successful fulfillment of this Agreement shall be measured by an evaluation of
the report of the results following completion of the program identified in Exhibit 1.

2. Abide by 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Guidance” to determine the permissibility of all costs,
both those charged to the Division and those contributed by the Cooperator.

3. Consult with personnel of the Division for technical assistance and expertise as
necessary to assure successful project completion.

4. Maintain records of actual expenditures made on behalf of the work performed under
the Agreement in accordance with 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Guidance” for a period of at
least five years after final payment. These records are subject to audit by the Division,
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Comptroller General, or their representatives
with reasonable notice to the Cooperator.  The Division shall have the right to disallow
any costs which are not reasonable, allocable to the work performed, nor allowable
under the terms of 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Guidance.”  The Cooperator shall repay to



Page 2 of 6 

the Division any such disallowed cost upon written notice, but reserves the right to 
appeal any decision. 

5. Maintain records of any equipment purchased under the terms of the agreement
indefinitely in accordance with 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Guidance.” Any item listed in
Exhibit 1 is deemed to have been approved by the Division for purchase by the
Cooperator. Any item of equipment not listed in the proposal shall not be purchased
without the prior written approval of the Division.

6. Provide appropriate recognition to the Division on the printed materials accompanying
the production of their role in the Agreement project. This recognition shall include the
prominent display of the Division of Wildlife and USFWS Wildlife and Sportfish
Restoration logos on all publications, related printed materials and websites.

7. Maintain a complete accounting of all instructor and volunteer time accumulated
during this project. Volunteer time and other contributions may be used by the
Division for in-kind matching funds. The Cooperator shall report this information to the
Division within 60 days following the date of the last activity of the project.

8. Not convert equipment to uses other than those originally approved by the Division,
and shall not transfer said equipment without cost, and shall not sell said equipment
without written approval of the Division. If for any reason during the one-year period of
this Agreement the Cooperator finds that such equipment is no longer needed for its
originally approved use, the Cooperator shall notify the Division in writing of such
finding. With written approval of the Division, the Cooperator may convert said
equipment to a use other than that originally approved, transfer said equipment
without cost, or sell said equipment. For conversions, sales or transfers made during
the one-year period, the Cooperator shall repay to the Division within forty-five (45)
days of the approved disposition of said equipment, seventy-five percent (75%) of any
expended funds granted by the Division for the originally approved purchase of said
equipment.

9. If at the end of the one-year period, the market value of the equipment is greater than
fifty percent (50%) of any expended funds granted by the Division for the originally
approved purchase of said equipment, the Cooperator shall develop a disposition
plan and request approval from the Division. If the market value of the equipment is
less than fifty percent (50%) of the expended funds granted by the Division for the
originally approved purchase of said equipment, the Cooperator may dispose of the
equipment in a manner consistent with 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Guidance.”

B. THE DIVISION SHALL:

1. Provide funding in the amount of $2113.50 for performance of the work and 
activities described in Exhibit 1. Obligations of the State are subject to the 
provisions of the
R.C. Section 126.07.

2. Provide technical assistance and expertise.

3. Acknowledge the Cooperator as a partner in the Division’s aquatic education efforts. 
C. IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD:

1. Work under this Agreement shall not commence until the Cooperator has been
officially notified by the Division to proceed. Any services or materials supplied by the
Cooperator prior to such notification, shall not give rise to any legal obligation upon
the Division.

2. This Agreement is effective as of the date first written above and shall continue in
effect until June 30, 2019. At that time the state may renew the Agreement under the
same terms and conditions by mutual written agreement for a term ending June 30,
2020. Performance by the Division under this Agreement may be dependent upon the



Page 3 of 6 
 

appropriation of funds by the Ohio General Assembly. If the Ohio General Assembly 
fails at any time to continue funding for the payments due hereunder, this Agreement 
is hereby terminated as of the date that the funding expires without further obligation 
of the Division. 

 
3. The terms of this Agreement are subject to revision by mutual, written, consent by 

both parties; and further provided that, prior to the completion of this Agreement, 
either party hereto shall have the option and privilege of terminating this Agreement 
by giving a 30-day written notice of intention to terminate to the other party. If the 
Agreement is terminated at the request of the Cooperator then a full refund of the 
Agreement monies shall be required within 30 days. If the Agreement is terminated by 
the Division, the Cooperator shall reimburse the Division for unexpended funds. 

 
4. The Division reserves the right at any time after execution of this Agreement, to 

terminate the Agreement, in whole, or in part, upon written notification to the 
Cooperator. At termination, the Cooperator shall furnish to the Division a copy of all 
invoices and records per paragraph A.5., with a statement as to the amount of work 
completed on said Project. Upon receipt of the above information the Chief, Division 
of Wildlife, shall determine the percent completion of the Project, and pay a pro-rated 
amount of the original Agreement price based on said percentage. The Cooperator 
agrees that determination of said amount, by the Chief, Division of Wildlife, is a 
binding and final determination. However, the Cooperator may request 
reconsideration by the Chief, Division of Wildlife, upon evidence not initially submitted 
at the time of termination of the Agreement.   

 
5. This Agreement is not part of any other Agreement between the Cooperator and the 

Ohio Department of Natural Resources and/or the Division. 
 
6. If the Cooperator does not comply with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 

the Agreement shall be immediately canceled and all monies due the Cooperator 
shall be forfeited to the State. 

 
7. The Cooperator shall be solely responsible for any and all claims and liability for 

personal injury, including death, or property damage resulting from negligent or 
intentional acts or omissions of the Cooperator and its employees while they are 
conducting the work performed under this Agreement. 

 
8. On and after the date of this Agreement, and to the extent allowable by law, the 

Cooperator agrees to defend and hold the State harmless from loss, damage, or 
liability in case of claim or suit made against the State by reason of any incident 
arising from, concerning, or in any way connected with the implementation, 
construction, operation, or maintenance of the Project. 

 
9. The laws of the state of Ohio shall govern this Agreement and any claims arising in 

any way out of this Agreement. Any provision of this Agreement prohibited by the law 
of Ohio shall be deemed void and of no effect; however, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall 
be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained herein. Any litigation arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement 
or the performance hereunder shall be brought only in the courts of Franklin County, 
Ohio, and Cooperator hereby irrevocably consents to such jurisdiction. 
 

10. The Cooperator certifies that neither it nor its employees are public employees of the 
Division under federal and state law for tax, retirement deduction, and Workers' 
Compensation purposes and that the Cooperator carries Workers’ Compensation 
coverage. The Cooperator is undertaking the work under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of the Division. Nothing in 
this Agreement shall be construed so as to create a partnership, joint venture, or 
other relationship between the parties. 



Page 4 of 6 
 

11. Cooperator affirms that it has all of the approvals, licenses, or other qualifications 
needed to conduct business in Ohio and that all are current. Cooperator further 
affirms that if at any time during the term of this Agreement, Cooperator is the subject 
of any reportable event as outlined in Section 872 of Public Law 110-417 (41 U.S.C. 
2313) as set forth in Exhibit 2 attached or, for any reason, becomes disqualified from 
conducting business in the State of Ohio, or becomes debarred from doing business 
with the State of Ohio, Cooperator will immediately notify the Division in writing and 
will immediately cease performance of the Work. Failure to provide such notice in a 
timely fashion as required by the Federal funding authority shall void this agreement 
and may be sufficient cause for the State or the Federal funding agency to debar the 
Cooperator from future State contracting opportunities as may be permitted by state 
or federal law, guidance for which is provided at 2 CFR Sections 180 and 200.212. 
Cooperator represents and warrants that it is not debarred from consideration for 
contract awards by the Director of the Department of Administrative Services, 
pursuant to either R.C. 153.02 or R.C. 125.25. If for any reason Cooperator becomes 
disqualified from conducting business in Ohio during the term of this Agreement, 
Cooperator shall both immediately notify the Division in writing and cease 
performance of work. 

12. The Cooperator shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, military 
status, disability, national origin, or ancestry. The Cooperator shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, 
military status, disability, national origin or ancestry. Such action shall include, but is 
not limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, including apprenticeship. 
The Cooperator agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Division setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
13. This program receives Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service. Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the 
U.S. Department of the Interior and its bureaus prohibit discrimination on the bases of 
race, color, national origin, disability, age or sex (in educational programs). If you 
believe that you have been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility, or 
if you desire further information, please write to: 

 
  The U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
  Office for Diversity and Civil Rights Programs-External Programs 
  4040 N. Fairfax Drive, Suite 130 

  Arlington, VA 22203 
 
14. The Cooperator affirmatively represents and warrants to the Division that it is not 

subject to a finding for recovery under R.C. 9.24, or that it has taken appropriate 
remedial steps required under R.C. 9.24 or otherwise qualifies under that section.  
Cooperator agrees that if this representation or warranty is deemed to be false, the 
Agreement shall be void ab initio as between the parties to this Agreement, and any 
funds paid by the Division hereunder immediately shall be repaid to the Division, or an 
action for recovery immediately may be commenced by the Division for recovery of 
said funds.   

 
15. The Cooperator affirms that, as applicable to it, no party listed in Division (I) or (J) of 

R.C. Section 3517.13 or spouse of such party has made, as an individual, within the 
two previous calendar years, one or more contributions totaling in excess of 
$1,000.00 to the Governor or to his campaign committees. 

 
16. The Cooperator agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal drug-free 

workplace laws. The Cooperator shall make a good faith effort to ensure that all 



Page 5 of 6 
 

program participants will not purchase, transfer, use, or possess illegal drugs or 
alcohol or abuse prescription drugs in any way while under the Cooperator’s 
supervision during its training programs. The Cooperator further agrees to provide 
smoke-free classrooms for all participants. 

 
17. The Cooperator by signature on this document, certifies that it: (i) has reviewed and 

understands the Ohio ethics and conflict of interest laws as found in R.C. Chapter 102 
and in R.C. Sections 2921.42 and 2921.43, and (ii) will take no action inconsistent 
with those laws. The Cooperator understands that failure to comply with Ohio’s ethics 
and conflict of interest laws is, in itself, grounds for termination of this Agreement and 
may result in the loss of other contracts or grants with the State of Ohio. 

 
18. The Cooperator affirms to have read and understands Executive Order 2011-12K 

issued by Ohio Governor John Kasich and signed and completed the Standard 
Affirmation and Disclosure Form and shall abide by those requirements in the 
performance of this Agreement and perform no services required under this 
Agreement outside of the United States. The Executive Order is available at the 
following website: 
http://governor.ohio.gov/Portals/0/pdf/executiveOrders/EO%202011-12K.pdf 

 
19. The Cooperator will not assign any of its rights nor delegate any of its duties and 

responsibilities under this Agreement without prior written consent of the Division. Any 
assignment or delegation not consented to may be deemed void by the Division.   
 

20. Pursuant to R. C. 9.76, the Cooperator hereby declares that it is not boycotting any 
jurisdiction with whom the State of Ohio can participate in open trade, including the 
nation of Israel, and will not do so during the term of this Agreement 
 

21. This agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original and taken together shall be deemed to be one and the 
same instrument. This Agreement may be executed and delivered by electronically in 
Microsoft Word or PDF format. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the date(s) written herein 
below. 
 
 
COOPERATOR      DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
      DIVISION OF WILDLIFE 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Officer   Michael R. Miller, Chief 
      Division of Wildlife 
      As Designee For: 
_________________________________ James Zehringer, Director 
Printed Name      Ohio Department of Natural Resources 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Title       Date 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Organization Name      
       
 
_________________________________  
Date       
 
 
___________________ 
Federal Tax ID Number 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-31 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:    
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE DELAWARE COUNTY 
BOARD OF DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES AND THE CITY OF DELAWARE 
TO PARTNER IN THE PRESENTATION OF SAFETY TOWN. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
This M.O.U. is required by the Delaware County Board of Developmental 
Disabilities to officially partner with the Delaware Police Department in the 
activities of Safety Town.  This legislation would authorize the city manager to 
sign this M.O.U., and any successor M.O.U.’s that are substantially similar.   
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 Council approval is needed for all intergovernmental agreements.  DCBDD 
requires the M.O.U. to partner with the police department.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
  
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 None 
 
POLICY CHANGES:    
None 
 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memorandum of Understanding  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-31 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF 
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES AND THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE TO PARTNER IN THE PRESENTATION OF 
SAFETY TOWN. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Police Department seeks to continually 

partner with and promote engagement opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Delaware County Board of Developmental Disabilities 

wishes to partner with the Police Department at Safety Town. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign 
the Memorandum of Understanding with the Delaware County Board of 
Developmental Disabilities; as well as any substantially similar future M.O.U.’s 
between DCBDD and the Police Department to partner on Safety Town. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

its passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

The Delaware County Board of Developmental Disabilities (“DCBDD”), whose principal place of 
business is located at 7991 Columbus Pike, Lewis Center, Ohio 43035 and the Delaware Police Department, 
(“Organization”) whose principal place of business is located at 70 North Union Street, #2, Delaware, Ohio 43015 
enter into this Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) on 4th day of May 2018 (individually, “Party” and 
collectively, “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, Organization manages the educational program known as “Safety Town” in an effort to educate 
children on safety topics; and  

WHEREAS, DCBDD wishes to participate in the Safety Town sessions as a Partner Agency in an effort to assist 
Organization; and  

WHEREAS, Organization desires to officially designated DCBDD a Partner Agency for its participation in the 
activities of Safety Town.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants stated herein, the Parties agree as 
follows:   

1. Designation of Partner Agency 

Organization hereby recognizes and designates DCBDD as a Partner Agency for DCBDD’s participation in any 
and all activities that take place during any and all Safety Town sessions. 

2. Consent to Use Photographs as a Partner Agency 

As a Partner Agency, DCBDD shall have authority to take, have, and publish photographs of the participants in 
Safety Town for DCBDD’s promotional purposes when the participant has consented to use of photographs on 
the Safety Town Registration.  

3. Effective Date 

The term of this MOU shall become effective on and be inclusive of the date the last Party signs this MOU.   

4. Entire Agreement 

This MOU shall constitute the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties and shall supersede all 
prior understandings and agreements relating to the subject matter hereof. This MOU shall not be assigned. 

5. Governing Law  

This MOU shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio.  

6. Headings 

The subject headings of the Sections and Subsections in this MOU are included for purposes of convenience only 
and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. This MOU shall be deemed to have 
been drafted by both Parties and no purposes of interpretation shall be made to the contrary.  

7. Waivers 



2 
 

No waiver of breach of any provision of this MOU shall in any way constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent, 
subsequent, or future breach of this MOU or any other provision hereof.  

8. Severability 

The invalidity of any portion of this MOU shall not invalidate the remainder, and the remainder shall continue in 
full force and effect. 

9. Liability and Insurance 

Each Party agrees to be responsible for the negligent acts and omissions of itself and its respective officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers arising out of or in connection with this MOU.  

Each Party shall carry sufficient insurance, for the life of this MOU, as will protect it against any and all claims 
that may arise out of the performance of this MOU.  

10. Signatures 

Any person executing this MOU in a representative capacity hereby warrants that he/she has authority to sign this 
MOU or has been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this MOU on such principal’s behalf.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this MOU. 

SIGNATURES: 
 
DCBDD: 
 
 
_____________________________________________    __________________________ 
Kristine Hodge, Superintendent      Date 
Delaware County Board of Developmental Disabilities 
7991 Columbus Pike 
Lewis Center, Ohio 43035 
 
ORGANIZATION: 
 
 
(Signature) ___________________________________    __________________________ 
          Date 
(Printed Name) ________________________________ 
 
(Title) ________________________________________ 
 
Approved as to form:  

 

_________________________________ 
Carol Hamilton O’Brien 
Delaware County Prosecuting Attorney 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM G DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-32 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jerry Warner, Chief Building Official 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:    
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DELAWARE COUNTY, 
THROUGH THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR BACKUP 
BUILDING OFFICIAL SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
As a building department certified by the Ohio Department of Commerce, 
Board of Building Standards under Section 3781.10 of the Ohio Revised Code, 
we are required to provide back-up personnel for each of the required certified 
disciplines, of the certified building department. We have provided mutual aid 
for backup personnel to Delaware County and the City of Powell for a number 
of years.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
4101:1-1-01 OAC  
2.6 Backup Personnel. The department shall have in its employ or under 
contract, alternate personnel meeting the requirements of this rule, to serve in 
the event of a conflict of interest the unavailability of the building official, plans 
examiner or inspectors. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
  
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



 
POLICY CHANGES:    
 
PRESENTER(S): 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S)  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-32 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN DELAWARE COUNTY, 
THROUGH THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS FOR BACKUP BUILDING OFFICIAL 
SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware desires to enter into an 
intergovernmental agreement with Delaware County, through the Board of 
County Commissioners. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Council of the City of Delaware, 
Ohio as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Delaware County, through the 
Board of County Commissioners to provide backup building official services on 
an as needed basis (see attached agreement). 

 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 



AGREEMENT  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ______ day of June, 2018, by and 
between Delaware County, Ohio, through the Board of County Commissioners, 
hereinafter called “COUNTY” and The City of Delaware, through City Council, 
hereinafter called “CITY”. 
 
WITNESSETH:  
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY are each required to have a backup building official 
on staff or under contract as a part of the Ohio Board of Building Standards Certification 
process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY are occasionally in the need of back up inspection 
assistance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY have qualified staff and are willing to provide such 
services as may be needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY use the same building, electrical and mechanical 
codes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY wish to establish an AGREEMENT with each other 
to provide the above requirements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, CITY and COUNTY, in consideration of their mutual covenants, 
herein agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

A. The CITY and COUNTY may provide backup building official and inspection 
services on an as needed basis to each other. Respectively, the CITY and the 
COUNTY reserve the right to determine the ability to provide the services as 
requested.  

 
B. Both the CITY and COUNTY agree that any staff provided as part of the 

backup service will be certified by the State of Ohio as a building official, 
building inspector and electrical safety inspector. 

 
C. The CITY and COUNTY shall maintain, at their own expense, all requirements 

of the State of Ohio for continuing education for their own employees. 
 
D. The CITY and COUNTY shall maintain, at their own expense, the codes and 

standards necessary for the execution of the building official and inspection 
services. 

 



E. Transportation shall be furnished by the jurisdiction providing the backup 
services. The CITY and the COUNTY shall assure that each employee working 
under this agreement possesses a valid license, professional liability insurance 
and automobile liability insurance. 

 
F. All clerical services and necessary supplies shall be furnished by the 

jurisdiction requesting the backup services.  
 
G. Inspection documentation and disposition of inspection shall be made on forms 

provided by the jurisdiction requesting the backup services. The necessary 
procedure for the inspection documentation shall be established by the 
jurisdiction requesting the backup services. The CITY and COUNTY agree to 
provide written procedure(s) for their method of inspection documentation. 

 
H. Prior to performing inspections the CITY and COUNTY shall assess any 

difference in code interpretations within the applicable code(s) and determine 
which interpretation will be applied during the inspection(s) performed. In the 
event the inspector performing the inspection determines the need for an 
interpretation, he/she shall contact the responsible jurisdiction’s building 
official and/or authorized official. The interpretation of the responsible 
jurisdiction’s building official and/or authorized official shall be followed. The 
CITY and COUNTY agree to establish common inspection checklists to aid in 
the consistency of inspections. 

 
I. The jurisdiction needing the assistance shall notify the other jurisdiction as soon 

as possible, but no later than 3:30 p.m. the day previous to the inspection(s). A 
list detailing the inspection type, address, time (if applicable) and any other 
pertinent information shall be provided. The jurisdiction requesting the 
service(s) shall notify the affected customer(s) of the altered inspection 
coverage prior to the performed inspection.  

 
J. The jurisdiction providing the service shall make every attempt to provide the 

service the next business day. Services shall be completed no later than the 
second business day. Inspection results and any corresponding documentation 
shall be provided to the authority having jurisdiction by 9 a.m. on the day 
following the inspection. If the inspection is not completed the next business 
day, the responsible jurisdiction shall be notified on the requested date of 
inspection. This will allow notification to the customer of the same. 

 
Each party shall determine if their staffing levels are adequate to provide the 
requested service. Each party understands and agrees that their own inspections 
will be made priority.  

 
K. All permits, registrations, fees, etc. will be issued and/or collected by the 

jurisdiction having legal authority. 
 



L. Coordination of the service(s) shall be administered by the jurisdiction 
providing the back up inspections and included as part of the overall cost of the 
service. 

 
M. Complaints and/or disputes resulting from the provided service(s) will be 

reported immediately to the authority having jurisdiction. The authority having 
jurisdiction shall provide for the appeal mechanism for all disputes and 
complaints. 

 
SECTION 2 – BASIS OF PAYMENT 
  
 A. Each party shall be compensated by payment for services based upon the  

     hourly costs fee schedule below. All costs associated with the services  
     provided shall be inclusive to the various hourly rates provided below. 

 
  Building Official  $81/hour 
  Building Inspector  $54/hour 
  Electrical Safety Inspector $65/hour 
  Mechanical Inspector  $54/hour 
  Mileage   $0.55/mile 
 

B.  Each party shall provide a report quarterly for services rendered throughout the 
 three month period. The report shall consist of a fully itemized account of the 
 services performed. Reports shall indicate the dates of service, permit and/or 
 project name, and the time spent on each. 

 
C. Services shall be exchanged one for one (1 for 1).  In the event that one party 

provides more hours of service than the other, that party will be compensated at 
the above listed (2A) rate(s) for the actual hours worked. The party providing 
the greater amount of hours shall invoice the other party for the difference in 
hours on a quarterly basis. Invoices shall be paid within forty-five (45) days of 
the date of the invoice. 
 
Reimbursable expenses shall be itemized and original receipts provided. 
Reimbursable expenses shall be indicated as such on the invoice. 
 

SECTION 3-GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio. 
 

B. Neither the CITY, nor the COUNTY shall assign their responsibilities under  
this AGREEMENT to any other third party without the written consent of the 
other party. 
 



C. This AGREEMENT shall commence _____________________, 2018, and will 
run for a period of three years from said date.  The AGREEMENT may be 
renewed for a three year period upon the mutual agreement of both parties. 

 
D. Either party may terminate this AGREEMENT by providing thirty (30) days  

written notice to the other party. 
 

E. Each party shall defend, at its own expense, its own employee(s) in all 
litigation, pay all attorney fees, damages, court costs, and other expenses and 
satisfy and cause to be discharged any judgments obtained against its own 
building official(s), officers, agents or employees arising out of the litigation or 
claim resulting from a negligent act, error or omission in the performance of the 
services under this AGREEMENT. 
 
It is expressly agreed that the services provided under this AGREEMENT are 
of such a nature that the building official is afforded considerable discretion in 
the application and enforcement of the Codes and/or resolutions prescribed.  
 

F. The Parties each agree to maintain control over their respective personnel, and 
this Agreement shall not be construed to alter the employment relationship each 
Party has with its respective personnel. Each Party shall be responsible for the 
compensation, benefits, and liabilities of its respective personnel and hereby 
agrees to release the other Party from any responsibility therefor.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this AGREEMENT 
as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
Delaware County Board of Commissioners   City of Delaware 
 

  
__________________________________   _________________________ 
Gary Merrell, President of the Board    City Manager 
Pursuant to Resolution Number 11 – 137 and 
Resolution Number ______________ 
 
Date: ________________     Date: ____________________
         
   
      
Approved As To Form:     Approved As To Form: 
 
 
_______________________________                           ________________________ 
Prosecuting Attorney      Delaware City Attorney 



 

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATION (RC 5705.41(D)): 
 
The Delaware County Auditor hereby certifies that the County funds required to meet the 
obligations of the County set forth in this Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by 
the County for such purpose and are in the county treasury or in the process of collection, 
free from any other encumbrances. 
 
 
 
                                                                         
George Kaitsa, Delaware County Auditor 
 
Purchase Request #: ___________________ 
 
Contract #: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM H DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-33 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) 
FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE PROPOSED TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL AT US-23 AND HAWTHORN BOULEVARD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part the Coughlin’s Crossing Development Project, a signal was warranted 
at the intersection of US-23 and Hawthorn Boulevard as a result of the 
projected traffic volumes the development would add onto the existing roadway 
network.  The traffic signal design and construction will be part of the 
Coughlin’s Crossing US-23 Roadway Improvements and will be 100% funded 
by the Developer. The signal will be located outside the City of Delaware 
Corporation Limits within ODOT’s jurisdiction.  This intersection will be part of 
the City of Delaware’s US-23 coordinated signal system for the US-23 corridor 
from US-42 to SR-315 and the City will be responsible for the oversite and 
inspection during construction and full maintenance responsibilities after the 
public improvements have been accepted. ODOT requires agreements for all 
traffic signals that are within their jurisdiction, but that will be maintained by 
City.     
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



Approval of the agreement is required to specify the responsibilities of the City 
of Delaware and is required by ODOT in advance of the installation of a new 
signal on US-23 that is outside the City Limits.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The Design, Construction and Inspection of this traffic signal is 100% funded 
by the Developer of the Coughlin’s Crossing Project 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A, US-23 & Hawthorn Boulevard Signal Plan 
Exhibit B, ODOT Signal Agreement. 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-33 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) FOR 
THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 
PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT US-23 AND 
HAWTHORN BOULEVARD. 

 
 WHEREAS, a need for a traffic signal exists to efficiently control the 
ingress and egress of traffic at the intersection US-23 and Hawthorn Boulevard; 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, the location and property described above, the proposed signal, 
and the signal appurtenances are all shown on the plan, identified as Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the City wishes to have the proposed traffic signal installed 
with the Coughlin’s Crossing Development US-23 Roadway Improvements Project; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the location of the traffic signal and appurtenances shall be in 
accordance with Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part thereof.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. The City hereby agrees that the design and installation of the 
subject signal will conform to the plan included in the Agreement as Exhibit “A”. 
 

SECTION 1. The City hereby agrees to cooperate with the Director of 
Transportation of the State of Ohio in accordance with the Agreement, identified 
as Exhibit “B” attached hereto; 
 

SECTION 2. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is hereby empowered 
on behalf of the City of Delaware to enter into contracts with the Director of 
Transportation necessary to complete the described project. 
 

SECTION 3. That the Clerk of Council will transmit to the Director of 
Transportation a fully executed copy of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 



formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 5.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-37    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 89.618± ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE WILGUS 
ANNEXATION BY ANDREW P. WECKER,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The property proposed to be annexed has long been contemplated to be part of 
the City of Delaware.  The land owners and their agents have been moving 
forward with the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) dictated annexation process.  This 
process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order for 
an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first city 
step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed January 22, 2018 via Resolution 
18-08.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City jurisdiction.  City 
Council must decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  
If no action is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on June 11, 2018 
ORC dictates that the annexation will be denied.  The applicant wishes to begin 
the rezoning process prior to final action by City Council and thus multiple 
readings of this legislation are anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the 
ORC required date of June 11, 2018.   
 



The property is approximately 89.6 acres in size, is composed of two pre-
existing lots of record, and is located south of the Delaware Municipal Airport 
and west of the Innovation Court Development along future Sawmill Parkway. 
Attached is a memo documenting the responses from various Departments in 
the city with respect to the Resolution of Services as well as potential items and 
issues to consider during the deliberations for this final acceptance of the 
annexation. 
 
In accordance with this memo, Staff recommends several conditions of 
annexation approval which are contained within the proposed ordinance.  
These conditions are for the purpose of clearly articulating some of the physical 
and infrastructure constraints that exist for the property today, while allowing 
for the possibility of a future development agreement. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until June 11, 
2018 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be failed.  The applicant wishes to begin the rezoning process prior to 
final action by City Council and thus multiple readings of this legislation are 
anticipated with passage anticipated prior to the ORC required date of June 11, 
2018. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval on Third Reading  
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution 18-115 
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution 18-08 with attachments 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-37 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
89.618± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE WILGUS ANNEXATION BY ANDREW P. 
WECKER,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on February 5, 2018 (See attached)  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 89.618 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Wilgus Annexation by Andrew P. Wecker, agent for 
the petitioners with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant will support the City should the City seek to annex City 
property adjacent to the Wilgus Annexation that includes approximately 
9.906 acres on parcel #419-220-02-007-001. 

2. Access to the Wilgus Annexation property shall be from Sawmill Parkway 
and at locations and access points as required by the City. 

3. Access to the property shall require the extension of Sawmill Parkway by 
the applicant or developer of the property in the absence of a 
development agreement and dedication at no cost to the City of required 
right-of-way by the Wilgus Annexation property as may be required by 
the City. 

4. Airport Road is anticipated to be abandoned and shall not be relied upon 
by the Wilgus Annexation property as public access as required by the 
City. 

5. The Wilgus Annexation property is anticipated to require significant 
storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and water line improvements a portion of 
which may be outside of the City jurisdiction.  The Applicant shall be 
required in the absence of a development agreement to obtain and pay 



for any and all necessary easements, permits, and construction activities 
that may be required in this regard. 

6. Notwithstanding the above conditions, the City and 
applicant/owner/developer now or in the future may separately agree to 
enter into a specific development agreement stipulating any 
infrastructure development items or incentives for such that may be 
approved by both parties. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-29  
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       June 25, 2018 @ 7:30 p.m. 
       
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A JOINT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (JEDD) CONTRACT WITH BERKSHIRE 
TOWNSHIP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2015, the City of Delaware and Berkshire Township entered into a Joint 
Economic Development District in which people who work in the JEDD will pay 
the city’s 1.85% income tax, with the proceeds to be split between the two parties.  
The City and Township wish to enter into an agreement to create a second JEDD.  
This JEDD will have an 80/20% split which is in line with other JEDD 
agreements.  The City will continue to provide tax collection services for an 
administrative fee of up to 4%.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
At the August 14, 2017 City Council Meeting, Council indicated their willingness 
to participate in the second JEDD under the terms included in the agreement 
80/20% split, 4% admin fee, 1% to JEDD Board).  The resolution is required 
because it is an intergovernmental agreement.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
20% of the JEDD income tax collected 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft Agreement 
Map 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-29 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO ENTER INTO A JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (JEDD) CONTRACT WITH BERKSHIRE 
TOWNSHIP. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware (the “City”) and Berkshire Township (the 

“Township”) previously entered into a Joint Economic Development District 
(JEDD); and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the success of that JEDD the City and Township 

wish to enter into an agreement to establish a new Joint Economic 
Development District in Berkshire Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, employees who work in the JEDD will pay the city’s 1.85 

percent income tax; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties agree that development in the JEDD will impact 

the city’s infrastructure, specifically in the area of The Point and along 36/37; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, under the terms of this agreement the City will receive 20 

percent of the net revenue generated within the JEDD; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City anticipates using its share of the proceeds to help 
fund necessary improvements at The Point and along 36/37; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City will administer the tax collection for the JEDD for an 
administrative fee of up to 4 percent of the gross revenue of the JEDD. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a Joint 
Economic Development District (JEDD) contract with Berkshire Township 
memorializing the mutual understanding of the parties regarding the contract. 



 
  SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CONTRACT 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
 

AND 
 

BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP (DELAWARE COUNTY), OHIO 
 

Dated as of 
 

June 1, 2018 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
   Item            Page 
 
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 2 
 Section 1.1 Definitions 2 
 Section 1.2 Interpretations 3 
 Section 1.3 Captions and Headings 3 
  
ARTICLE II JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4 
 Section 2.1 Creation and Territory 4 
 Section 2.2 Purpose 4 
 Section 2.3 Contributions 4 
 Section 2.4 Economic Development Plan 5 
 
ARTICLE III TERM 6 
 Section 3.1 Term 6 
 Section 3.2 Prior Termination 6 
 Section 3.3 Actions upon Termination 6 
 
ARTICLE IV THE BOARD 7 
 Section 4.1 Creation, Membership and Appointment of the Board 7 
 Section 4.2 Board Officers and Procedures 8 
 Section 4.3 Powers and Duties of the Board 8 
 
ARTICLE V JEDD INCOME TAX 11 
 Section 5.1 Authorization to Levy JEDD Income Tax 11 
 Section 5.2 Allocation of Proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax 11 
 
ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEOUS 12 
 Section 6.1 Fiscal Year 12 
 Section 6.2 Reports and Records 12 
 Section 6.3 Amendments 12 
 Section 6.4 Support of Contract; Execution of Other Documents 12 
 Section 6.5 Binding Effect 13 
 Section 6.6 Counterparts 13 
 Section 6.7 Severability 13 
 Section 6.8 Governing Law and Choice of Forum 13 
 Section 6.9 Notices and Payments 13 
 Section 6.10 Entire Agreement 14 
 
SIGNATURE PAGE 15 
FISCAL OFFICERS’ CERTIFICATIONS 16 
EXHIBIT A - BERKSHIRE-DELAWARE JOINT ECONOMIC 
                       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 A 
EXHIBIT B  - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN B



1 
 

JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CONTRACT 
 

 This Joint Economic Development District Contract (this “Contract”) dated as of June 1, 
2018 is entered into by and between the City of Delaware, Ohio (the “City”), a municipal 
corporation and political subdivision organized and existing pursuant to the Constitution and 
laws of the State of Ohio (the “State”) and its Charter, and Berkshire Township (Delaware 
County), Ohio (the “Township”), a township and political subdivision organized and existing 
under the laws of the State.  (Capitalized terms and words used, but not otherwise defined, in this 
Contract have the meanings assigned to them in Article I.) 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, the JEDD Statutes authorize a municipal corporation and a township to 
enter into a contract to provide for the creation of a joint economic development district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township desire to create a joint economic development 
district for the purpose of facilitating economic development to create or preserve jobs and 
employment opportunities and to improve the economic welfare of the people in the State and in 
the areas of the City and the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the JEDD Statutes, the Constitution and laws of the State, the 
Charter and ordinances of the City and resolutions of the Township, the City and the Township 
desire to enter into this Contract to set forth their agreements with respect to the JEDD, 
including, but not limited to, their contributions to the JEDD, the creation of the Board, the 
powers and duties of the Board and the distribution of proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the agreements, 
representations and covenants set forth in this Contract, the City and the Township agree as 
follows: 
 
 

(Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 Section 1.1 Definitions.  In addition to “Contract”, “City”, “State” and “Township” 
defined above, the following capitalized words and terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the JEDD established in accordance with 
the JEDD Statutes and this Contract. 

 
“County” means the County of Delaware, Ohio. 
 
“Effective Date” means the date immediately succeeding the occurrence of all of the 

following:  (i) the City’s and Township’s execution of this Contract, (ii) the thirty-second day 
after the adoption of the Township’s resolution authorizing this Contract, and (iii) the expiration 
of any statutory period permitting a referendum of the Township’s resolution or the City’s 
ordinance authorizing this Contract. 

 
“Gross Revenues” means the proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax, less refunds. 
 
“Net Revenues” means Gross Revenues less (a) to the extent the funds available to the 

Board are insufficient for such purposes, any amount required to pay costs of any audits of the 
JEDD mandated by the State or any liability imposed on the JEDD or the Board by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, (b) amounts due to the City pursuant to the JEDD Income Tax 
Agreement, (c) 1% of the Gross Revenues allocated to the Board pursuant to Section 5.2 and (d) 
any amount paid or reimbursed pursuant to Section 6.4. 

 
“JEDD” means the Berkshire Joint Economic Development District No. 2 created 

pursuant to the JEDD Statutes and this Contract and includes the real property described and 
depicted in Exhibit A to this Contract. 

 
“JEDD Income” means (i) the income earned by persons working  or residing in the 

JEDD and (ii) the net profits of businesses located in the JEDD. 
 
“JEDD Income Tax” means the tax on JEDD Income levied by the Board in accordance 

with the provisions of this Contract. 
 
“JEDD Income Tax Agreement” means that agreement to be entered into by and between 

the Board and the City providing for the City to (i) administer, collect and distribute the JEDD 
Income Tax in accordance with the Contract and (ii) act as the fiscal agent of the JEDD and the 
Board. 

 
“JEDD Statutes” means Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72. 
 



3 
 

Section 1.2 Interpretations.  Any reference herein to the County, the City, the 
Township or the Board or to any officer or employee of the County, the City, the Township or 
the Board, includes the entities, officers or employees succeeding to their respective functions, 
duties or responsibilities pursuant to or by operation of law, or the entities, officers or employees 
lawfully performing their respective functions, duties or responsibilities. 
 
 Any reference herein to a section or provision of the Constitution of the State, the Ohio 
Revised Code, the Charter of the City or legislation of the County, the City or the Township or 
any statute of the United States of America, includes that section or provision as amended, 
modified, revised, supplemented or superseded from time to time; provided, however, that no 
amendment, modification, revision, supplement or superseding section or provision shall be 
applicable to this Contract solely by reason of this Section 1.2 if such amendment, modification, 
revision, supplement or superseding section or provision constitutes an impairment of the rights 
or obligations of the City, the Township or the Board under this Contract. 
 
 Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, words importing the singular number 
include the plural number and vice versa.  The terms “hereof”, “hereby”, “herein”, “hereto”, 
“hereunder” and similar terms refer to this Contract.  The term “hereafter” means after, and the 
term “heretofore” means before, the date of this Contract.  Words of any gender include the 
correlative word of the other genders unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 
 
 Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, any reference to a “Section” is a reference 
to a section of this Contract. 
 
 Section 1.3 Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Contract are 
solely for convenience of reference and do not define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any 
Articles, Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses herein. 
 

(End of Article I) 
 

  



4 
 

ARTICLE II 
JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
Section 2.1 Creation and Territory.  The City and the Township hereby create the 

“Berkshire Joint Economic Development District No. 2” consisting of real property described 
and depicted in Exhibit A to this Contract.  The provisions set forth in Ohio Revised Code 
Section 715.72 (R) shall apply to the unincorporated territory of the Township located in the 
JEDD. 

 
Section 2.2 Purpose.  The City and the Township are creating the JEDD for the 

purpose of facilitating economic development to create or preserve jobs and employment 
opportunities and to improve the economic welfare of the people in the State and in the areas of 
the City and the Township. 

 
Section 2.3 Contributions. 
 

(a) The Township: 
 

(i) shall furnish or cause to be furnished to the JEDD all usual and 
customary governmental services furnished by the Township to similarly situated 
properties located in the unincorporated area of the Township outside of the 
JEDD, including, but not limited to maintenance of township roads, snow removal 
and general administration; and 

 
(ii) shall provide accommodations, if requested, for meetings of the 

Board, maintenance of the records of the JEDD and, if reasonably available, as 
determined by the Township, any necessary clerical staffing for the Board.  The 
Township may also cause certain improvements to property located within the 
JEDD to be declared a public purpose, the increased value of such property to be 
exempt from real property taxes for a period of time, the owner(s) of such 
property to be required to pay service payments in lieu of taxes, and the receipts 
of such service payments to be used to pay costs of public infrastructure 
benefitting such property and the JEDD, all in accordance with the Ohio Revised 
Code; and 

 
(iii) may furnish to the JEDD such services allowed by law as the 

Township and the Board deem appropriate and agree. 
 
(b) The City: 

 
(i) shall cooperate with and assist the Board in activities that promote, 

complement and benefit economic development in the JEDD; provided, however, 
the City is not expected or required to undertake any such activity to the detriment 
of economic development in the City; and 

 



5 
 

(ii) shall cooperate with and assist the Township on issues affecting 
the JEDD, such as planning, zoning and building standards and review; and 

 
(iii) shall provide the services set forth in the Income Tax Agreement; 

and 
 
(iv) may furnish such services allowed by law as the City and the 

Board agree upon. 
 

Section 2.4 Economic Development Plan.  The Economic Development Plan for the 
District shall consist of that Economic Development Plan attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B to this Contract. 

 
(End of Article II) 

 
  



6 
 

ARTICLE III 
TERM 

 
Section 3.1 Term.  The term of this Contract shall commence on the Effective Date 

and shall terminate on December 31, 2119. 
 
Section 3.2 Prior Termination.  This Contract may be terminated prior to December 

31, 2119 by the City or the Township by notice to the other not earlier than 365 days and not 
later than 180 days prior to the termination date: 

 
(a) if the Board has not adopted a resolution to levy the JEDD Income Tax 

within one year after the Effective Date; or 
 
(b) if a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates the levy of 

the JEDD Income Tax and no appeal of such order has been filed or the period for such 
appeal has lapsed. 
 
The termination of this Contract pursuant to (a) or (b) above shall be effective on the date 

stated in the notice of termination. 
 
Section 3.3 Actions upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Contract: 
 

(a) the Board shall remain in office for six months to provide for an orderly 
termination of the JEDD; and 

 
(b) the levy of the JEDD Income Tax shall cease, but the JEDD Income Tax 

levied prior to the termination shall be collected and distributed in accordance with 
Article V of this Contract; and 

 
(c) 20% of any remaining assets of the JEDD shall be distributed to the City 

and 80% of such remaining assets shall be distributed to the Township; provided, 
however, if any such assets cannot be liquidated, the City and the Township must agree 
on the value of such assets for their distribution; and 

 
(d) the records of the JEDD shall be given into the custody of the Township 

and shall be available for inspection or audit by the City or the Township. 
 

(End of Article III) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

ARTICLE IV 
THE BOARD 

 
 

Section 4.1 Creation, Membership and Appointment of the Board.   
 

(a)  Pursuant to the JEDD Statutes, the City and the Township hereby establish 
the Board to govern the JEDD. 

 
(b) If on the Effective Date there are businesses located and persons working 

within the JEDD, the Board shall consist of:  (i) one member representing the City, (ii) 
one member representing the Township, (iii) one member representing the owners of 
businesses located within the JEDD, (iv) one member representing the persons working 
within the JEDD, and (v) one member selected by the above members. 

 
(c) If on the Effective Date there are no businesses located or persons working 

within the JEDD, the Board shall consist of:  (i) one member representing the City, (ii) 
one member representing the Township, (iii) one member selected by the above 
members; provided, however, that if after the Effective Date a business locates or persons 
commence working within the JEDD, the Board shall be expanded to also include:  (iv) a 
member representing the owners of businesses located within the JEDD, and (v) a 
member representing the persons working within the JEDD, and provided further that 
upon the termination of the member selected by the initial two members of the Board, 
thereafter that member shall be selected by the four members described in (i), (ii), (iv) 
and (v) of this paragraph. 

 
(d) The City shall appoint the members representing the City and the owners 

of businesses located within the JEDD, and the Township shall appoint the members 
representing the Township and the persons working within the JEDD.  The City and the 
Township will make their initial appointment of members of the Board within 60 days 
after the Effective Date, and the terms of those members shall commence on the first day 
of the first month commencing 57 days after the Effective Date.  The Board shall first 
meet within the first month that commences 57 days after the Effective Date and shall 
select the remaining member of the Board – the member described in (v) of paragraph (b) 
above or in (iii) of paragraph (c) above – within that month for a term commencing the 
first day of the immediately succeeding month.  The initial terms of the members 
described in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) of paragraph (b) above shall be one year, two years, 
three years, four years and four years, respectively.  The initial terms of the members 
described in (i), (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (c) above shall be one year, two years and three 
years, respectively. 

 
(e) The initial appointment of the members described in (iv) and (v) of 

paragraph (c) above shall be for a four year term commencing on the first day of the same 
month as the terms of the members described in (i) and (ii) of paragraph (c) above 
commenced, and should commence the first such day after a business locates or a person 
commences working in the JEDD. 



8 
 

 
(f) After the initial terms of all members expire, the terms of all members 

shall be for four years; provided, however, each member shall continue to serve until the 
member’s successor is appointed; and provided further that upon termination of this 
Contract, the terms of the members then serving shall terminate six months after the 
termination of this Contract. 

 
(g) The term of any person to fill a vacancy on the Board because of the 

death, resignation or removal of a member shall terminate when the term of the member 
removed, resigned or died would have terminated. 

 
(h) The City and the Township covenant to use their best efforts to timely 

appoint all members of the Board. 
 
(i) The member described in (v) of paragraph (b) above or (iii) of paragraph 

(c) above shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board. 
 
(j) The members of the Board shall not receive compensation for such 

membership or for their attendance at meetings of the Board, but may be reimbursed for 
expenses incurred in performing their duties. 

 
(k) Any member may be reappointed to the Board, but no member shall serve 

more than two consecutive terms on the Board. 
 
Section 4.2 Board Officers and Procedures.  The Board shall enact bylaws or other 

procedures for the governance of the Board, including procedures for the election from its 
members of a Vice Chairperson and a Secretary-Treasurer; provided, however, the terms of such 
officers shall not be for a period longer than one year. 

 
Section 4.3 Powers and Duties of the Board.   
 

(a)   In addition to the duty to enact bylaws or procedures set forth in Section 
4.2, the Board shall: 
 

(i) if it enacts the JEDD Income Tax as authorized by Section 5.1, 
enter into the JEDD Income Tax Agreement with the City; provided that 
payments to the City for services rendered pursuant to the Income Tax Agreement 
shall not exceed 4% of Gross Revenues for any calendar year during the term of 
the Income Tax Agreement; and 

 
(ii) adopt an annual budget for the Board and the JEDD that estimates 

the revenues and expenses of the Board and the JEDD; and 
 
(iii) establish an appropriations procedure to provide for payment of the 

expenses of the Board and the JEDD and the distribution of the JEDD Income 
Tax in accordance with Section 5.2. 



9 
 

(b) In addition to the authorization to levy the JEDD Income Tax set forth in 
Section 5.1, the Board is authorized to: 
 

(i) take such actions necessary or convenient to carry out the powers 
granted in this Contract and/or the JEDD Statutes; and 

 
(ii) purchase, receive, hold, lease or otherwise acquire, and sell, 

convey, transfer, lease, sublease or otherwise dispose of, real and personal 
property, together with such rights and privileges as may be incidental or 
appurtenant thereto and the use thereof; and 

 
(iii) acquire, purchase, construct, reconstruct, enlarge, furnish, equip, 

maintain, repair, sell, exchange, lease or rent from others, or operate, facilities for 
the JEDD; and 

 
(iv) make available the uses or services of any JEDD facilities to one or 

more persons or government agencies or any combination thereof; and 
 
(v) apply to the proper authorities of the United States pursuant to 

appropriate laws for the right to establish, operate and maintain foreign trade 
zones within the JEDD; and 

 
(vi) establish and maintain such funds or accounts as it deems 

necessary, either of its own or in conjunction with the City or the Township; and 
 
(vii) promote, advertise and publicize the JEDD and its facilities, 

provide information relating to the JEDD and promote the interests and economic 
development of the JEDD, the City, the Township, the County and the State; and 

 
(viii) make and enter into contracts and agreements and authorize one or 

more officers of the Board to sign instruments necessary or incidental to the 
performance of its duties and the execution of its powers pursuant to this Contract 
and the JEDD Statutes; and 

 
(ix) employ managers or other employees and retain or contract with 

consulting engineers, financial consultants, accounting experts, architects, 
attorneys and such other consultants and independent contractors as are necessary 
in its judgment to carry out the purposes of this Contract, and fix the 
compensation thereof, which shall be payable from any available funds of the 
JEDD; and 

 
(x) receive and accept from any federal or state agency, the Township, 

the City, the County or other persons grants for or in aid of the construction, 
maintenance or repair of any JEDD facility, for research and development with 
respect to JEDD facilities or for programs or other projects of the JEDD, and 
receive and accept aid or contributions from any source money, property, labor or 



10 
 

other items of value, to be used and applied for the purposes of such grants, aids 
or contributions and this Contract; and 

 
(xi) purchase fire and extended coverage and liability insurance for any 

JEDD facility or office, insurance protecting the JEDD and its Board, officers and 
employees against liability arising from the operations or actions of the Board or 
the JEDD, and any other insurance the Board may determine to be reasonably 
necessary; and 

 
(xii) provide guidance and directions on issues regarding tax 

abatements, economic development incentives, tax increment financing, zoning, 
traffic and infrastructure within the JEDD and make recommendations regarding 
the same to appropriate agencies. 
 

(End of Article IV) 
 
 

  



11 
 

ARTICLE V 
JEDD INCOME TAX 

 
 

Section 5.1 Authorization to Levy JEDD Income Tax.  The Board is hereby 
authorized to enact legislation to (a) levy the JEDD Income Tax at the rate currently and 
hereafter levied by the City on the income of individuals and the net profits of businesses, and 
(b) adopt regulations, rules or code for the administration, collection and enforcement of the 
JEDD Income Tax. 

 
Section 5.2 Allocation of Proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax.  The City shall, on 

behalf of the JEDD, and pursuant to the JEDD Income Tax Agreement, collect and administer 
the JEDD Income Tax. 

 
(a) Gross Revenues shall be used to pay to:  (i) the City the amount then due 

pursuant to the JEDD Income Tax Agreement, (ii) the Board an amount equal to 1% of 
the Gross Revenues, (iii) the Board, to the extent the funds then available to the Board are 
insufficient, an amount sufficient to pay costs of any audit of the JEDD mandated by the 
State or any amount needed to pay any liability imposed on the Board by a court of 
competent jurisdiction and (iv) the City and/or the Township an amount to reimburse the 
City and/or the Township for amounts expended pursuant to Section 6.4. 

 
(b) Net Revenues shall be allocated and paid as follows:  20% to the City and 

80% to the Township. 
 
(c) Within 30 days of the last day of March, June, September and December 

of each year (or if any such date is not a business day, on the immediately succeeding 
business day), the City shall, on behalf of the JEDD (i) pay from the Gross Revenues to 
the City the amounts then due pursuant to (a) above, (ii) calculate and pay the amounts 
due from the Net Revenues for the prior three months to the Board, the City and the 
Township pursuant to (b) above, and (iii) provide an accounting of the receipts and uses 
of the proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax for the prior three months, including, but not 
limited to, a summary of the amounts of JEDD Income Tax on individuals withheld by 
each Business.  In the event that any amount due from the Net Revenues to the Board, the 
City or the Township is a negative amount, then that negative amount shall be set off 
against the next amount to be paid. 
 

(d) It is expressly understood and agreed that amounts received by the Board, 
the City and the Township may be used by each of the entities for any lawful purpose in 
each’s sole discretion. 
 

(End of Article V) 
  

 
 

  



12 
 

ARTICLE VI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 6.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the JEDD shall commence on January 1 of 

each calendar year and shall terminate on December 31 of the same calendar year. 
 
Section 6.2 Reports and Records.  Within 30 days of the effective date of this 

Contract, the Board shall notify the Auditor of State of the State of Ohio of the creation of the 
JEDD and the Board. 

 
Within three months after the end of each fiscal year of the JEDD, the Board shall 

compile and distribute to the City and the Township a report setting forth all revenues received 
by the JEDD during the preceding fiscal year and all disbursements made during that fiscal year. 

 
Within three months prior to the commencement of each fiscal year of the JEDD, the 

Board shall prepare and distribute to the City and the Township a budget for that fiscal year, 
stating anticipated revenues and expenses of the JEDD. 

 
All books, records, documentation, and financial information of the JEDD shall, upon 

request, be made available to the City and the Township and their agents for review and/or audit.  
The Board and the JEDD shall fully cooperate with the City or the Township in fulfilling such a 
request. 

 
Section 6.3 Amendments.  Except for any amendment of this Contract or the JEDD to 

increase the territory of the JEDD, this Contract may be amended by the City and the Township 
pursuant to a written amendment authorized by the respective legislative authorities of the City 
and the Township.  Any real property located within the JEDD may be removed from the JEDD 
pursuant to a written amendment duly authorized by the City and the Township.  Following a 
duly authorized amendment removing real property from the JEDD, such property shall be 
deleted from the territory of the JEDD and is then no longer subject to the terms of the Contract.  
Any amendment of this Contract or the JEDD to increase the territory of the JEDD shall be 
subject to the provisions of the JEDD Statutes for adding areas to the JEDD. 

 
Section 6.4 Support of Contract; Execution of Other Documents.  The City and the 

Township shall support this Contract and shall defend the same against any lawsuits brought 
against the JEDD, the Board, the City or the Township in conjunction with the JEDD.  The 
expenses and fees of the Board, the City and the Township, including reasonable attorney fees, 
incurred in any lawsuit brought against the JEDD, the Board, the City or the Township shall be 
paid or reimbursed from Gross Revenues. 

 
The engineering and surveying expenses and fees which were incurred by the Township 

in preparing both a description of the JEDD and a map denoting the boundaries of the JEDD 
shall be reimbursed from Gross Revenues prior to any distributions to the JEDD Parties.  The 
Township shall also be reimbursed from Gross Revenues the legal fees and expenses incurred by 
the Township in preparing various documents needed to create the JEDD, provided that the legal 
fees and expenses reimbursed shall not exceed the sum of $10,000.00.  If the Gross Revenues are 



13 
 

insufficient at any time to pay any such expenses and fees, the Township shall be reimbursed 
when such revenues are available for that reimbursement. 

 
The City and the Township each agree to cooperate with the others in the implementation 

of this Contract and to execute or cause to be executed, in a timely fashion, all necessary 
documents in order to effectuate the purposes of this Contract. 

 
Section 6.5 Binding Effect.  All rights, benefits, and privileges under this Contract 

shall inure only to the City and the Township, and no third parties shall have any right to claim 
any rights, benefits, or privileges under this Contract.  Each covenant, agreement or obligation of 
the City or the Township under this Contract is binding on each officer of the City or Township, 
respectively, who has the authority or duty from time to time under the laws of the State to take 
any action which may be necessary or advisable to observe or perform the covenant, agreement 
or obligation. 

 
Section 6.6 Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, 

each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same Contract. 

 
Section 6.7 Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 

provision of this Contract shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract or any part thereof and the same shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 6.8 Governing Law and Choice of Forum.  This Contract shall be governed 

by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.  All claims, counterclaims, disputes 
and other matters in question regarding this Contract or its breach will be decided in a court of 
competent jurisdiction within the State. 

 
Section 6.9 Notices and Payments.  All notices, demands, requests, consents or 

approvals given, required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
sufficiently given if received or if hand delivered or sent by recognized overnight delivery 
service or by certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to (i) (A) the 
City at City of Delaware, Ohio, 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, Attention:  City 
Manager, (B) the Township at Berkshire Township, 1454 Rome Corners Road, Galena, Ohio 
43021, Attention:  Administrator, and (C) to the Board, at Chair, Board of Directors, Berkshire 
Joint Economic Development District No. 2 at the business address for the JEDD in the rules 
adopted by the Board, or (ii) such other address as the recipient shall have previously notified the 
sender in writing as provided in this Section 6.9. 

 
All payments shall be made to (i) (A) the City at City of Delaware, Ohio, 1 South 

Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, Attention:  Finance Director, (B) the Township at 
Berkshire Township, 1454 Rome Corners Road, Galena, Ohio 43021, Attention:  Fiscal Officer, 
and (C) to the Board, at Chair, Board of Directors, Berkshire Joint Economic Development 
District No. 2 at the business address for the JEDD in the rules adopted by the Board, or (ii) such 
other address as the recipient shall have previously notified the sender in writing as provided in 
this Section 6.9. 



14 
 

 
Section 6.10 Entire Agreement.  This Contract is the only and entire agreement 

between the City and the Township regarding the JEDD. 
 

(End of Article VI) 
 
 

  



15 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the City and the Township have subscribed to this JEDD 
Contract by their duly authorized officers: 

      
 BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP 

 (DELAWARE COUNTY), OHIO 
 

Date:    , 2018 By:         
    Township Administrator 
 
 
   CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
 
Date:    , 2018 By:         
    City Manager 
 
 
  



16 
 

FISCAL OFFICERS’ CERTIFICATIONS 
 

The undersigned fiscal officer of Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio hereby 
certifies that the moneys require to meet the obligations of the Township during the calendar 
year 2018 under the foregoing Joint Economic Development District Contract have been 
appropriated lawfully for that purpose, and are in the treasury of the Township or in the process 
of collection to the credit of an appropriate fund, free from encumbrances.  This certification is 
made in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44. 

 
          
   Fiscal Officer 
   Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio 
 
The undersigned fiscal officer of the City of Delaware, Ohio hereby certifies that the 

moneys require to meet the obligations of the City during the calendar year 2018 under the 
foregoing Joint Economic Development District Contract have been appropriated lawfully for 
that purpose, and are in the treasury of the City or in the process of collection to the credit of an 
appropriate fund, free from encumbrances.  This certification is made in compliance with Ohio 
Revised Code Sections 5705.41and 5705.44. 

 
          
   Finance Director 
   City of Delaware, Ohio 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE JEDD 
 

The JEDD consists of twelve (12) complete parcels and a portion of one parcel, all of which are 
located within Berkshire Township, Delaware County, Ohio.  The map attached as Exhibit A 
shows the location of these properties.  The complete parcels located within the JEDD consist of 
the following parcels as numbered and in the records of the County Auditor of Delaware County, 
Ohio: 
 
 Parcel Number     Current Zoning 
 
1. 41721002013000     Planned Commercial District 
2. 41721002014001     Planned Commercial District 
3. 41722001012004     Planned Commercial District 
4. 41722001012001     Planned Commercial District 
5. 41722001012002     Planned Commercial District 
6. 41722001012003     Planned Commercial District 
7. 41721002038000     Planned Commercial District 
8. 41722001017000     Agriculture/Planned Mixed Use Dist.  
9. 41722001018000     Planned Commercial District 
10. 41723001005000     Agriculture/Planned Mixed Use Dist. 
11. 41723001004000     Agriculture/Planned Mixed Use Dist. 
12. 41723001003000     Agriculture/Planned Mixed Use Dist. 
 
Except for that portion described on Exhibit A-1, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein, the remainder of Parcel Number 41721002012000 is located within the JEDD, with this 
property being currently zoned Planned Commercial District. 
 
Parcel Numbers Eight (8) through Twelve (12) above are encompassed within the Planned 
Mixed Use District. 
 
Parcel Numbers One (1) through Seven (7), as well as that portion of Parcel Number 
41721002012000 located in the JEDD, are encompassed within the 36/37 Planned Mixed Use 
District. 
  

 
 
 

 

 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A (CONTINUED) 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE JEDD 
 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A (CONTINUED) 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
DESCRIPTION OF THE JEDD 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A (CONTINUED) 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
DESCRIPTION OF THE JEDD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A (CONTINUED) 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
DESCRIPTION OF THE JEDD 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 The economic development plan for the Berkshire Joint Economic Development District 
No. 2 (the “JEDD”) to be created pursuant to a Joint Economic Development District Contract 
(the “JEDD Contract”) by and between the City of Delaware, Ohio (the “City”) and Berkshire 
Township (Delaware County), Ohio (the “Township”) will be the (i) construction of certain 
commercial and residential improvements in the corridor surrounding the interchange of 
Interstate 71 and State Routes 36 and 37, and (ii) the construction of public infrastructure (the 
“Public Infrastructure”) to facilitate and support the commercial and residential development, 
including, but not limited to, the construction of roadway improvements; construction and 
installation of public utility improvements; construction and installation of gas, electric and 
communication service facilities; construction and installation of stormwater and flood 
remediation projects and facilities; streetscape and landscaping improvements; acquisition of 
easements and other interests in real estate; and other public infrastructure located within the 
City and the Township, together with all necessary or appropriate appurtenances. 
 
 The construction of the commercial and residential improvements is expected to occur 
over the next 10-20 years. 
 
 The JEDD Contract provides that the Township shall furnish or cause to be furnished to 
the JEDD all usual and customary governmental services provided by the Township to similarly 
situated properties located in the unincorporated area of the Township outside of the JEDD, 
provide accommodation, if requested, for meetings of the Board, maintenance of the records of 
the JEDD and, if reasonably available, as determined by the Township, any necessary clerical 
staffing for the Board, and the Township may declare certain improvements to property located 
within the JEDD to be a public purpose, exempt the increased value of such property from real 
property taxes for a period of time, require the owner(s) of such property to pay service 
payments in lieu of the exempted real property taxes and use the receipts of such property taxes 
to pay costs of the Public Infrastructure, all in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 
5709.73, 5709.74 and 5709.75; and provide such services allowed by law as the Township and 
the board of directors (the “Board”) of the JEDD may agree.  The JEDD Contract provides that 
the City shall cooperate and assist the Board in activities that promote, compliment and benefit 
economic development in the JEDD; shall cooperate and assist the Township on issues affecting 
the JEDD, such as planning, zoning and building standards and review; administer, collect and 
distribute the income tax expected to be levied by the Board on the income of persons working in 
the JEDD and the net profits of businesses located in the JEDD; act as fiscal agent for the JEDD 
and the Board; and furnish such services allowed by law as the City and the Board agree.   
 
 The JEDD Contract authorizes and anticipates the levy by the Board of a tax on the 
income of persons working or residing in the JEDD and the net profits of businesses located in 
the JEDD at the same rate currently levied by the City (currently 1.85%) for distribution to the 
Board, the City and the Township. 
 





 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
 

The City of Delaware of Delaware County, Ohio will conduct a public hearing at 7:30 p.m. on 
June, 25, 2018 at City Hall located at 1 S. Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio, concerning a 
proposed Joint Economic Development District Contract (the “JEDD Contract”) by and between 
Berkshire Township and the City of Delaware and the proposed Berkshire Joint Economic 
Development District No. 2 (the “JEDD”) to be established by the JEDD Contract. Additional 
information is available on the City’s website at http://www.delawareohio.net/city-council-2018/ 
 

 
     BY NOTICE OF THE CITY COUNCIL CLERK 

Elaine McCloskey, Council Clerk 
 

 
Please publish the foregoing notice one (1) time only on May 23, 2018 
 
Please send bill and proof of publication to: 
 
Elaine McCloskey, Council Clerk 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
1 S. Sandusky Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 









FACT SHEET

DATE: 06/11/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 

AGENDA ITEM NO:  12  

ORDINANCE NO: 18-43  

READING: SECOND PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
June 11, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
REQUEST FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 
ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST WEST 
OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT). 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 2, 2018 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-43 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR A NEW 
SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 
50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK 
ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS 
ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of May 2, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit request for a New Service 
Center Building on approximately 50 acres located on the south side of Slack 
Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property zoned A-1 (Agricultural 
District) (PC Case 2018-0642). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit request for a New Service 
Center Building on approximately 50 acres located on the south side of Slack 
Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property zoned A-1 (Agricultural 
District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

DATE: 06/11/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 

AGENDA ITEM NO:  13  

ORDINANCE NO: 18-44  

READING: SECOND PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A COMBINED PRELIMINARY 
AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING 
ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK 
ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED 
A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT). 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan 
requirements of the zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 2, 2018 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-44 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A 
COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER 
BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED 
ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST 
WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY 
ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of May 2, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for a New Service Center Building on approximately 50 acres located on the 
south side of Slack Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property zoned 
A-1 (Agricultural District) (PC Case 2018-0643) and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for a New Service Center Building on approximately 50 acres located on the 
south side of Slack Road and just west of the railroad tracks on property zoned 
A-1 (Agricultural District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted, with 
the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Public Works and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the Public 
Works Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The City engineering division and the applicant shall execute of an off-
site improvement agreement to Slack Road from Liberty Road to the site 
to accommodate the subject development.   

3. The laydown yard constructed of gravel shall be approved by the City 
Engineer. 

4. A sidewalk on the south side of Slack Road shall be installed along the 
frontage of the site if not incorporated in the Slack Road improvements 
agreement. 

5. The Shade Tree Commission shall review and approve all landscape 
plans. 

6. The limestone on the building and sign base shall be Delaware blue vein 
limestone or equivalent as approved by staff.  



7. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

8. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material 
and color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval. 

9. The dumpster shall be enclosed with walls to match the limestone veneer 
on the building and shall have wood doors to match. 

10. The proposed chain link fence shall be black vinyl coated exempt for 
where vertical hedge link privacy fillers are required. 

11. The fence adjacent to Kesslebrooke Station Subdivision shall be a 6 feet 
high chain link fence and shall include vertical hedge link privacy fillers. 

12. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the Planning & 
Zoning Code. 

13. Any building and ground signage plan shall achieve compliance with the 
minimum zoning requirements and the adopted Gateways and Corridor 
Plan. 

14. The fence adjacent to Kesslebrooke Station Subdivision shall be a 6 feet 
high chain link fence and shall include vertical hedge link privacy fillers. 

15. The above ground storage tank for the fueling station shall not exceed 
5000 gallons in capacity. 

16. The above ground storage tank shall achieve compliance with all state 
and national fire code regulations. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-34 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:    
 
BACKGROUND:   
The resolution, which was requested to be placed on the agenda by Mayor 
Riggle and Councilmember Jones, following a presentation at the May 14, 2018 
City Council meeting by Marianne Gabel and Sharlee Murphy.  Both are 
members of the Citizen’s Climate Lobby, a non-profit non-partisan grassroots 
advisory organization and was founded to address climate change.   
 
As Council considers this matter, it should familiarize itself with the pros and 
cons of the specific proposal as the carbon fee and dividend system is a 
complicated regulatory scheme.  As background for Council’s consideration we 
have enclosed materials that discuss and review the issue in more detail.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution was requested by the Citizen’s Climate Lobby at the May 14th 
City Council meeting.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Unknown 
 
POLICY CHANGES:    
City Council has typically in the past not taken a position on national policies.   
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S)  
Original Draft provided by Citizen’s Climate Lobby 
Articles: 

1. Marionaopolis World Review 
2. Yale Climate Connections 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-34 
 
 A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF CONGRESSIONAL 

CONSIDERTION OF A CARBON FEE AND DIVIDEND 
SYSTEM.  

 
WHEREAS, The Delaware City Council recognizes that the health and 

well-being of the citizens of Delaware are dependent upon the quality of our air, 
water and natural resources; and 
 

WHEREAS, much of the State of Ohio’s economy, including agriculture, 
industry, commerce, fishing, forests and tourism are dependent upon a stable 
climate; and  
 

WHEREAS, scientists at Ohio Wesleyan University, as well as, The Ohio 
State University and its Byrd Polar and Climate Research Center agree with the 
consensus of climate researchers worldwide that the climate is rapidly 
changing, and that the changes are associated with increased concentrations 
in the atmosphere of carbon dioxide (CO2) and other greenhouse gas pollutants 
derived principally from burning fossil fuels such as coal, oil and natural gas; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, further reductions of CO2 emissions are warranted in order 
to stay below the 2o C temperature rise that is acknowledged in global climate 
agreements to be a threshold dangerous to the habitability of the earth, and 
putting a price on carbon fuels (a “carbon fee”) is widely accepted by 
economists as being the most effective means to achieve this goal; and  
 

WHEREAS, former Representative Pat Tiberi (OH-12) was a member of 
the bipartisan “Climate Solutions Caucus” in the U.S. House of Representatives 
which now has 70 members, (35 Republicans, 35 Democrats), working on 
solutions to climate change; and  

 
WHEREAS, one approach to reduce carbon dioxide emissions is a 

Carbon Fee and Dividend system.  In a Carbon Fee and Dividend system a fee 
on carbon is levied at the extraction point of fossil fuels, or the port of entry 
into the U.S., with all monies returned to households as a “dividend”; and 

 
WHEREAS, a system such as Carbon Fee and Dividend can leverage 

market forces to encourage investments in energy efficiency and alternate 
sources of energy by both industry and consumers in a transparent and 
predictable manner. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 



SECTION 1.  That City Council supports efforts to reduce carbon dioxide 
emissions 

 
SECTION 2.  That City Council shall work toward policies and 

technological innovation that will reduce the City’s carbon emissions 
 

 SECTION 3.  Delaware City Council supports the implementation of a 
revenue-neutral carbon fee and dividend system, with all monies from carbon 
fees being returned to households as a carbon dividend as a potential method 
to reduce emissions.  
 

SECTION 4.   Delaware City Council strongly encourages the U.S. 
Congress to consider a revenue-neutral carbon fee and dividend system with 
the speed appropriate to the gravity and urgency of the situation, and in 
recognition of the benefits realized in transitioning to clean energy.  
 

SECTION 5. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 
passage. 

   
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

CITY OF DELAWARE RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, The Delaware City Council recognizes that the health and well-being of the citizens 
of Delaware are dependent upon the quality of our air, water and natural resources; and 

WHEREAS, much of the State of Ohio’s economy, including agriculture, industry, commerce, 
fishing, forests and tourism are dependent upon a stable climate; and  

WHEREAS, the scientists at Ohio Wesleyan University as well as The Ohio State University and 
its Byrd Polar and Climate Research Center agree with the consensus of climate researchers 
worldwide that the climate is rapidly changing, and that the changes are associated with 
increased concentrations in the atmosphere of carbon dioxide (CO2) and other greenhouse gas 
pollutants derived principally from burning fossil fuels such as coal, oil and natural gas; and  

WHEREAS, further reductions of CO2 emissions are warranted in order to stay below the 2o C 
temperature rise that is acknowledged in global climate agreements to be a threshold 
dangerous to the habitability of the earth, and putting a price on carbon fuels (a “carbon fee”) 
is widely accepted by economists as being the most effective means to achieve this goal; and  

WHEREAS, former Representative Pat Tiberi (OH-12) was a member of the bipartisan “Climate 
Solutions Caucus” in the U.S. House of Representatives which now has 70 members, (35 
Republicans, 35 Democrats), working on solutions to climate change, and  

WHEREAS, a Carbon Fee and Dividend system with a fee on carbon being levied at the 
extraction point of fossil fuels, or the port of entry into the U.S., with all monies returned to 
households as a “dividend”, would leverage market forces to encourage investments in energy 
efficiency and alternate sources of energy by both industry and consumers; 

WHEREAS, such a Carbon fee and Dividend would be market-based, transparent, non-
regulatory, predictable for business and fair to consumers, 

THEREFORE: 

Be it resolved by the Delaware City Council that the City of Delaware, Ohio, supports the 
implementation of a revenue-neutral carbon fee and dividend system, with all monies from 
carbon fees being returned to households as a carbon dividend.  

Be it further resolved by the Delaware City Council that the City of Delaware strongly 
encourages the U.S. Congress to enact a revenue-neutral carbon fee and dividend system with 
the speed appropriate to the gravity and urgency of the situation, and in recognition of the 
benefits realized in transitioning to clean energy.  

Be it further resolved by the Delaware City Council that the City of Delaware shall work toward 
policies and technological innovation that will reduce the City’s carbon emissions. 

 





















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-35  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
              
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David M. Efland, Director of Planning & Community Development 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
STEERING COMMITTEE. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City of Delaware has begun a Comprehensive Plan update that, when 
finished, will reflect current and future trends, priorities, and policies while 
being focused on the future.  After a formal call for applications for the Steering 
Committee, the city received 90 applicants, which is an incredible number.  
Staff and the national consultant team spent the following month reviewing all 
applications along a number of parameters to balance and ensure a diverse, 
well rounded, and representative group of a manageable size for the final 
Steering Committee selection now brought forward for consideration.   
 
This group is a little larger than we had planned for as the initial goal was for a 
group of about 20 to 25 and the total proposed is 31 citizens and 1 Council 
member.  With the diversity and complexity of our community and the 
tremendous response to the call for applications, Staff believes this size group 
is necessary to ensure the success of the Plan process.  It is the intention of the 
planning team to present the opportunity for those not selected to participate 
and be engaged in the process throughout. 
 
While the Steering Committee selection is important (we need to accomplish 
this on June 11th to move forward with the effort in the timeline previously 



discussed), the most important aspect of our efforts will be to give everyone in 
the community the opportunity to participate in the process in the coming 
months, including those that applied but are not selected for the formal 
Steering Committee.  All voices will have an opportunity to participate. 
 
Additionally, as the process unfolds there will be many opportunities for key 
stakeholders and groups to be involved as well.  The Steering Committee will be 
the most invested, obviously, in the process, and will help be the sounding 
board for the collective community as we move through the process.  To be the 
most successful, however, the Plan process needs to be a citizen led effort with 
Planning Commission making a formal recommendation and City Council 
making the ultimate decisions about the Plan of course. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: It is crucial that this plan be built 
on the values, needs and aspirations of the community. To ensure this 
happens, City Council is being asked to confirm this group of 31 community 
members and 1 City Council member to a comprehensive plan steering 
committee.  
 
The committee will help guide the public process and the plan’s 
recommendations. Members will work closely with the City’s planning staff, the 
planning consultant team and other community members to bring insight and 
perspective to the planning process. They will help spread the word about the 
planning effort to encourage community participation. They will also advise on 
the plan’s substance, helping staff and the consultant team to integrate the 
community’s intuition with technical analysis. Committee members may also 
act as spokespersons for the planning effort, serve as hosts at public events, 
and facilitate small group discussions. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
List of appointments, demographics, and background documents 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-35 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STEERING COMMITTEE. 
 
WHEREAS, Members of the comprehensive plan steering committee are 

to be appointed by the Mayor and the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, a comprehensive plan is the broadest public policy document 

a community can create for its future growth and development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the plan considers input of citizens, businesses and other 

stakeholders; and can serve as a foundation for budgeting decisions, zoning, 
land development and more; and 

 
WHEREAS, the existing (2003-2008) plan needs to be updated to reflect 

current trends and priorities while being focused on the future; and 
 
WHEREAS, the committee will meet at least eight times during an 

approximate 15-month planning effort beginning in June 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council appreciates and is grateful to all citizens who made 

formal application; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council acknowledges that a Steering Committee of a 

manageable size is desired and in the best interest of the City of Delaware; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council confirms the following appointments to the 

Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee (see attached listing).  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The attached listing of individuals are hereby appointed to 
the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee.  
 

  SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



Proposed Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee - 2018 

 

The Steering Committee shall be comprised of the following individuals (listed in alphabetical 
order): 

 

Donnie Akers Harry C. Hart Dustin Nanna Abbey Trimble 

Robert ( Bob) Badger Stefanie Hauck Jim Ohlin City Council Rep. 

Tajudeen (Taj) Bakare Jack Hilborn Nancy Reger  

Susie Bibler Robert Hillery Michael J. Rush  

David W Carpenter Anna Hurley John M. Rybka  

Heather Cowles Jennifer Franklin Kearns Stacy Simpson  

Beth Fisher Ben Kelly Kristina Sossa  

Katherine A Gharrity Chang Keat Koo Stephanie J Steinbeck  

Whitney Gherman Jacqueline Luzar Paul Stelzer  

Stephanie Gregory George Mantzoros Stephanie Stromberg  

 

Some basic demographics follow for the group as well as for the applicant pool: 

 



Proposed Steering Committee – 

 



All Applicants -                          

 



About the Steering Committee 
 

The City of Delaware is undertaking an ambitious long-range planning effort to establish a vision and 
policies for how and where the City will grow over the next decades. It is crucial that this plan be built on 
the values, needs and aspirations of the community. To ensure this happens, a diverse group of 
community members will be convened to guide the planning process.  

 

The Steering Committee will begin meeting in summer 2018. Over a period of approximately 15 months, 
the Steering Committee will work closely with the City’s planning staff, the planning consultant team 
and other community members to bring insight and perspective to the planning process. They will help 
spread the word about the planning effort to encourage community participation. They will also advise 
on the plan’s substance, helping staff and the consultant team to integrate the community’s intuition 
with technical analysis. Committee members may also act as spokespersons for the planning effort, 
serve as hosts at public events, and facilitate small group discussions. The Committee will meet 
approximately 8 times during 15-month planning effort. 

 
WHAT IS THE ROLE OF THE STEERING COMMITTEE?  
The Steering Committee is intended to be a working group and not a “blue ribbon” panel. The 
committee has a number of critical responsibilities and should operate on an agreed upon set of 
principles. 
 

Responsibilities 
The responsibilities of the committee are to: 

• Officially represent the citizens in the planning process. 
• Provide guidance and direction to the staff and consultants at crucial steps in the process. 
• Act as spokespersons for the effort. 
• Serve as hosts at public events during the process. 
• Identify volunteers for action committees and provide direction to those committees as their 

work takes place. 
• Recruit volunteers to assist with conducting outreach and facilitation at public meetings. 
• Volunteer to facilitate at public meetings. 
• Disseminate information during the planning process through their individual networks. 
• Present the vision for adoption before appropriate adopting bodies. 
• Serve as stewards of the plan once it is adopted.  

 

Operating Principles 
To guide the committee’s deliberations, the following operating principles are proposed: 

• A leadership structure will be established to facilitate productive and focused committee 
meetings. 



• Co-chairs will be appointed to provide leadership for the process 
• Regular attendance is strongly encouraged to ensure consistency in the committee’s 

deliberations. 
• A simple majority should be considered a quorum to conduct business. 
• Decision-making should be by consensus of those in attendance. 
• All Committee meetings are open to the public. 

 
WHAT IS THE ROLE OF THE CHAIRS?   
Co-chairs should be selected to lead the Steering Committee. They should be recognized leaders in the 
community, but not closely aligned with a particular interest group. Their role is described below: 

• Call meetings of the Steering Committee. 
• Monitor the work effort and schedule of activities. 
• Facilitate the decision-making of the committee, providing guidance through the deliberations.  
• Provide inspiration to the other members of the Steering Committee as they go about their 

work.  
• Serve as the key spokesperson for the effort, particularly with media.  
• Work with staff and consultant. 
• Establish any additional sub-committees that may be needed. 

 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-36 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION INDICATING WHAT SERVICES THE CITY OF DELAWARE 
WILL PROVIDE TO 221.341± ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” 
FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF 
AMERICA – CAMP LAZARUS ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. SHADE, AGENT 
FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff has discussed this annexation over a period of more than a year with the 
applicant.  The Camp needs to connect to city sanitary sewer services.  The 
land owners are now moving forward with the Ohio Revised Code dictated 
annexation process.  This process involves several steps and actions by the 
County and City in order for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the 
City.  This is the first City step in the process which requires the City to 
express its ability and intention to provide services to the property.  This does 
not mean that the City will be paying for or constructing any ultimately 
required services or infrastructure, but rather simply that we have the ability to 
serve it.  City Council will have the opportunity during the next and final city 
step in the process to accept, accept with conditions, or reject the final 
annexation. 
The property is (known as Camp Lazarus locally) is composed of several pre-
existing lots of record, and has a variety of indoor and outdoor recreational 
uses and activities on site.  The anticipated future use is to continue the past 



and current recreational activities on site.  Staff and the applicant have 
discussed a Planned Mixed Use Overlay Zoning as a result of the very unique 
mixture of uses on this site.  Also discussed has been the need to ensure the 
City can account for the existing archery and shooting range that have long 
been on site.  The Police Chief and City Attorney have been working on a draft 
change to current ordinances to account for this unique use on this unique site 
while not changing the long standing restrictions on these activities within the 
city in general.  Staff would anticipate bringing this forward with a future 
rezoning of the property as discussed with the applicant which should begin as 
the annexation process continues through the ORC required steps.  Much of 
the property has permanent open space / conservation easements upon it 
ensuring its continued use for such.  The Comprehensive Plan Future Land 
Use map indicates this property for Major Open Space as anticipated.  At this 
time there is no objection from Staff as to the Resolution of Services. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This is the first city step in that process requiring passage of 
a resolution indicating what services the city will provide to the subject site.  
Based on the timelines established in the Ohio Revised Code, this resolution 
must be passed at this meeting, after which it will be sent to the County for the 
next step in the annexation process.  While this resolution moves the 
annexation forward, this is not the final legislation Council will consider in 
order to accept the annexation.  60 days after the County approves the 
annexation, it will be presented at the first regular session of Council, and 
must be approved or rejected within 120 days from the date of the annexation 
being placed on the agenda.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval    
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Petition for Annexation 
Map 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-36 
 

A RESOLUTION INDICATING WHAT SERVICES THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE WILL PROVIDE TO 221.341± 
ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND 
MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBITS “A” AND 
“B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE CENTRAL 
OHIO BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA –CAMP LAZARUS 
ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. SHADE, AGENT FOR 
THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 

Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 221.341 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Michael R. Shade, as agent for the petitioners on May 29, 2018 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on May 24, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That upon annexation to the City of Delaware of 221.341± acres 
more or less as delineated on the attached Exhibits A and B, the City will provide 
the following services by the approximate date indicated as to each, provided all 
necessary lines, hydrants, and other apparatus are installed by the property 
owner as required by the City and said services shall be provided under the same 
conditions and same costs as they are provided to other residents in the City of 
Delaware: 

 
(a) Water - upon acceptance of annexation 
(b) Sanitary Sewer - upon acceptance of annexation  
(c) Refuse – upon acceptance of annexation  
(d) Fire – upon acceptance of annexation 
(e) Police – upon acceptance of annexation 

  (f)  Road maintenance-upon acceptance of annexation 



 
 SECTION 2.  That the Council of the City of Delaware, pursuant to Ohio 
Revised Code Section 709.023(D), hereby consents to the annexation. 
 
 SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 4. That the Clerk of Council shall prepare and furnish to the agent 
for the petitioners a certified copy of this resolution and file with the Delaware 
County Board of County Commissioners on or before 20 days from the filing of the 
annexation petition. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That if the territory is annexed and becomes subject to zoning 
by the City of Delaware and the City permits uses in the annexed territory that the 
City determines are clearly incompatible with the uses permitted under the 
current county or township zoning regulations in the adjacent land remaining 
within the township from which the territory was annexed, the Council of the City 
of Delaware will require, in the zoning ordinance permitting the incompatible uses, 
the owner of the annexed territory to provide a buffer separating the use of the 
annexed and the adjacent land remaining within the township for purposes of this 
ordinance, buffer includes open space, landscaping, fences, walls, and other 
structured elements; streets and street rights of way; and bicycle and pedestrian 
paths and sidewalks. 
 

SECTION 6. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after this passage. 
 
 
PASSED:                                   , 2018  YEAS       NAYS ___ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST:                                                ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































































CHAPMAN RD

GL
EN

N 
PK

W
Y

WINTER RD

OL
EN

TA
NG

Y 
RI

VE
R 

RD

COLUMBUS PIKE

OHIOHEALTH BLVD

VISTA RIDGE DR

CHERRY LEAF RD

Delaware County Auditor's GIS Office

Annexation Petition
Camp Lazarus - Boy Scouts of America

Aerial (2016) Map I



PI
AT

T 
RD

HYATTS RD

CHAPMAN RD

LI
BE

RT
Y 

RD

CHESHIRE RD

GL
EN

N 
PK

W
Y

SHANAHAN RD

BERLIN STATION RD

GREGORY RD

BUNTY STATION RD

PEACHBLOW RD

NO
RT

H 
RD

BEAN-OLLER RD

SA
W

M
IL

L 
PK

W
Y

BRAUMILLER RD

FORD RD

SHALE RUN DR

TAGGART RD
COLUMBUS PIKE BA

LM
OR

AL
 D

R

HARDIN LN

BA
LL

AT
ER

 D
R

MALABAR CT

GREIF PKWY

CLARK-SHAW RD

BR
IA

R 
DR

LALE PT

MA
PL

E 
VI

ST
A 

DR
OA

KL
EY

 D
R

BRETS LN

BEAN-OLLER RD

SA
W

M
IL

L 
PK

W
Y

BR
AU

MI
LL

ER
 R

D

GL
EN

N 
PK

W
Y

Annexation Petition
Camp Lazarus - Boy Scouts of America

Location Map I



off

off

vldsf

vldsf

mjrop

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

mdsf

vldsf vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

off

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

offvldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

off off off

off

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

off

off

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

off

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf
vldsf

vldsf vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsfvldsf

ccom

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

off

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

ccom

vldsf

vldsf

vldsf

mu

inst

ldsf

mjrop
mdsf

vldsf

ccom

ldmf

CHAPMAN RD

GL
EN

N 
PK

W
Y

WINTER RD

BEAN-OLLER RD

PEACHBLOW RD

CHESHIRE RD

GREIF PKWY

BA
LL

AT
ER

 D
R

VISTA RIDGE DR

CONNER LN

INDIGO BLUE ST

MCNAMARA LOOP

KI
TD

AR
E 

DR

CHESHIRE RD

GL
EN

N 
PK

W
Y

Annexation Petition
Camp Lazarus - Boy Scouts of America

Comprehensive Plan Map I



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17     DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-45     RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST      PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO ESTABLISH ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF ROAD SALT, 
BRINE APPLICATION EQUIPMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
During the 2017/2018 snow and ice season, 2,933 tons of road salt were used 
to treat twenty-three snow and ice events, exhausting the supply available at 
the beginning of the season.  The City was able to purchase 1,963 tons through 
suppliers for a cost of $119,783, leaving the reserve stockpiles 1,200 tons short 
for the next season.  The city also purchased 18,400 gallons of brine additives 
at a cost of $25,000 which in combination with brine is utilized to allow anti-
ice treatments at temperatures below 20OF. The combined cost of winter snow 
and ice materials was $145,000 which nearly depleted available funding in the 
2018 appropriations ordinance.  The City shall enter into an agreement with 
ODOT for the purchase of road salt necessary to fully restock the salt barn 
stockpile in advance of the ‘18/’19 winter.     
 
The season was also demanding on the anti-icing equipment.  It has been 
determined through combination of detailed mechanical inspection, lack of 
available replacement parts, and the rate of failure, that both vehicles used in 
anti-icing operations (1998 street sweeper body and a 2002 Tandem axle dump 
truck) are at the end of their respective useful service lives.   Both required 
extensive and costly maintenance and repairs to address deficiencies to allow 
either to operate for an additional season.  The combined cost of repairs is 



estimated in excess of $15,000.  Both vehicles are scheduled to be removed 
from service, one in 2018, and the other the following year.   
 
Modifications to anti-icing operations will include the purchase of new brine 
distributors that can be utilized within any of the single-axle dump trucks in 
the fleet, providing for maximum flexibility in the brining operations.  Moving to 
the removable brine distributor inserts will provided for a more sustainable 
operation that is not limited by vehicle maintenance delays and mechanical 
failure.  Though the 2018 operations budget includes funds to purchase a 
single brine applicator, it is being proposed to purchase the second unit this 
year and avoid expenses associated with maintaining the current unreliable 
vehicles dedicated to brine operations.  The estimated cost of the second brine 
applicator is $16,900. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The purchase of additional road salt and anti-icing chemicals during the 
2017/2018 winter season depleted available funding.  Additional funds are 
required to purchase the balance of salt needed to replenish the salt barn 
stockpile as well as for the purchase of the brine applicator.    
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The proposed $92,000 supplemental appropriation is derived from the following 
expenses: 

  
1,200 Tons of Road Salt at $60/ton   $72,000 
1,200 Gallon Brine Applicator     $18,000 

 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at 2nd reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Salt Brine Applicator 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-45 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
ROAD SALT, BRINE APPLICATION EQUIPMENT.  

 
WHEREAS, the Street Maintenance and Repair budget includes funding 

for the purchase of road salt and brine additives used to treat the highways 
during winter snow and ice events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the winter season from October 2017 through April 2018 

resulted in exhausting the road salt reserves and requiring the purchase of 
additional road salt to continue treatment operations; and  

 
WHEREAS, the brine application vehicles have reached the end of their 

anticipated service lives and now require extensive repair if they are to remain 
in service; and   

 
WHEREAS, a more sustainable solution to maintaining the brine 

application operation would be to purchase a brine applicator that can be used 
in a number of available single axle dump trucks; and   

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation is required to provide the 

funding necessary to purchase the additional road salt and brine applicator so 
that the city is fully prepared in advance of the ‘18/’19 winter snow and ice 
season.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Fund $90,000.00 increasing the following account: 

 
202.2020.5335   Snow/Ice Control Supply 
 

SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
  
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-46    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF 
THE RECREATION LEVY SUB-COMMITTEE OF CITY COUNCIL AND 
SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING FOR RECREATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 0.15% Recreation Income Tax Levy began in 2009 to be used to construct a 
new recreation center and to make other park improvements. City Council 
established a maximum amount to be spent on recreation improvements of 
$23,800,000.00. As of May 22, 2018, the remainder of the fund was 
$376,115.00. The complete list of projects completed with this fund is attached. 
The latest recommendation proposes recreation improvement projects that 
would use the remaining funds to complete projects throughout the city that 
would primarily update existing infrastructure. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
An appropriation for this work was not included in the 2018 City Budget. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Recreation Levy Sub-Committee recommended approval on May 29, 2018 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



Requires allocation from the unencumbered balance of the Recreation Facilities 
Income Tax fund to fund the specific projects recommended 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Total Cumulative Expenditures 
Recreation Facilities Levy Memorandum (5.23.18, updated 5.30.18) 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-46 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE RECREATION LEVY 
SUB-COMMITTEE OF CITY COUNCIL AND 
SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS 
ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR 
RECREATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS  AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, City Council created the Council Recreation Levy Sub-

Committee for the purpose of meeting with various stakeholders, including the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, in order to finalize a recommendation to 
the City Council for park improvements to be made with remaining 2008 Park 
Improvement Levy funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Recreation Levy Sub-Committee met on May 29, 2018 to 

consider input from stakeholders, Parks and Recreation Advisory board 
representatives, and City staff; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the Recreation Levy Sub-Committee deliberations 

the following recommendations were made:  
1. The attached listing of expenditures (dated 5.30.18) with estimated costs 

represents final improvements to be made from the proceeds of the 2008 
Park Improvement Income Tax Levy. 

2. In no event will final total improvement costs exceed $23,800,000 
which represents a maximum increase of $3,800,000 over the 
previously authorized borrowing of $20,000,000. 

3. The City will utilize a combination of cash payments and additional 
borrowings to pay for the recommended improvements such that 
future debt service obligations will be payable solely from future Park 
Improvement Levy income tax proceeds. 

4. No additional expenditures or obligations will be made against Park 
Improvement Levy income tax collections beyond the recommended 
final improvements and the related debt service payments. 

5. When the outstanding debt for the original $20,000,000 borrowing 
and any additional borrowing associated with the final improvements 
is able to be paid off, City Council will take action to rescind the Park 
Improvement Income Tax and remove the tax from the City's income 
tax rate. 

6. Once the attached list of expenditures is complete and/or the remaining 
$376,115.00 is allocated, the Recreation Levy Sub-Committee will be 
disbanded; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the improvements were not included in the 2018 
Appropriation Budget. 



 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That the recommendations of City Council’s Recreation Levy 
Sub-Committee, as identified above, are hereby adopted by City Council and 
made part of the Official Record of the City of Delaware. 

 
SECTION 2. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Recreation Facilities Income Tax Fund $376,115.00 increasing 
the following accounts: 

 
Parks General Construction Projects  $290,800.00 (233-0233-5527) 
Wayfinding and Signage    $85,315.00 (233-0233-5532) 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to finalize the 
recommendations for park improvements to be made with the remaining 2008 
Park Improvement Levy funds 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

  Page 1 of 6 

 
MEMORANDUM 
TO: R Thomas Homan, City Manager, Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
FROM:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
DATE:   5.23.18- updated after Recreation Levy Sub-Committee meeting on 5.29.18 
RE: Recreation Levy 
 
Recreation Levy Budget- $23,800,000.00 
 
Remaining unused Recreation Income Tax Levy (5.22.18)=  $376,115.00  
 
Current allocated funds for 2018=     $0.00  
     
Proposed Projects to be initiated 2018: 

1. Mingo HVAC replacements    $78,000.00 
2. Mingo Lighting      $32,000.00 
3. Mingo Windows     $65,000.00 
4. Mingo Water Fountains    $8,000.00 
5. Safety Lighting      $14,000.00 
6. Blue Limestone Basketball Courts   $93,000.00 
7. Park Signage      $98,900.00 
8. Pickle Ball Equipment    $10,000.00 

Total funds proposed           $398,900.00 
We anticipate making up the $22,785.00 difference through the high estimate costs used on 
the sign package and with the potential discount in bidding entire sign package bid as one. 
 
Explanation of Proposed projects: 

1. Mingo HVAC replacements       $78,000.00  
a. Hilborn Room – New HVAC system that replaces a 31 year old unit. The 

system would add efficiency and comfort to a system that has passed its 
useful life. Additionally, the system design is obsolete and could be replaced 
with a single package unit that combines the heating and cooling. The system 
is likely to fail at any time and will need replaced in the near future. 
$31,000.00 

b. Mingo Gymnasium heating system- This system is also passed it useful life 
and will likely fail at any time. The new system would provide a heating 
system only for the Mingo Recreation Center Gym. 
$38,000.00 

c. Mingo Gymnasium Exhaust Fans- Rebuild the existing exhaust fans and 
improve the intake louvers. The new fans would add efficiency and allow 



 
 

                                                                Page 2 of 6 

proper ventilation in the gymnasium, particularly in the summer months to 
help cool the space. The gymnasium is not currently air conditioned and to 
install a new AC unit would cost $32,000. Our recommendation is to renovate 
the exhaust fans and not install a new AC unit. 
$9,000.00 
 

2. Mingo Lighting-         $32,000.00 
a. Mingo Gymnasium- Replace the existing 400W metal halide lights (30) with 

180W LED lighting (30) to improve efficiency, maintenance and overall 
lighting of the gym. The metal halide bulbs are frequently replaced and 
provide average light for the gymnasium. Rough approximation is potentially 
a $1,500-$2,000 AEP rebate and the annual electric savings is approximately 
$1,500. The payback would take 9-10 years. This type update was recently 
completed at the Delaware Community Center YMCA indoor pool. 
$18,000.00 

b. Hilborn Room-Install 12 new LED lights, 8 pendant (ceiling) mounts and 4 
wall mount cylinder fixtures. This would improve the efficiency and overall 
appearance of the room making it more desirable for rentals. 
$8,000.00 

c. Various locations in the Mingo Recreations Center- Install new lighting 
fixtures in the following rooms:     Priority 

i. Mens/womens locker room – 12 fixtures     6 
ii. Mens/womens shower – 8 fixtures    5 

iii. Mens/womens locker bathroom – 4 fixtures   7 
iv. Entry Lobby – 18 fixtures      1 
v. Hallway wraps – 2 fixtures      3 

vi. Mens/womens restroom – 4 fixtures    8 
ii. Hallway lay in – 3 fixtures      2 

iii. Lifeguard – 2 fixtures      9 
iv. Concession – 5 fixtures      10 
v. Outside overhangs – Up to 20 fixtures   4 

  $25,975.00 – to complete all of the above 
  Staff has prioritized these projects and recommend allocating    
  $6,000.00 to complete the top 2-3 priorities. The remaining fixtures can 
  be addressed as funding and supplies allow. 
 

3. Mingo windows-         $65,000.00 
The windows in the original Mingo Recreation Center have never been replaced. The 
windows in this section are no longer efficient and detract from the buildings 
appearance. Updating the wood windows with aluminum windows would improve 
the appearance and drastically improve the utility efficiency of the building. 

 



 
 

                                                                Page 3 of 6 

4. Mingo indoor water fountain replacement-    $8,0000.00 
Replace 4 water fountains throughout the building. This would 
replace aged fountains and update facility to meet ADA 
standards.  
 
 
  
 
 

5. Safety Lighting-         $14,000.00 
a. Smith Park- The placement of two solar lights from the baseball fields to the 

north parking lot. Groups have requested lighting on the pedestrian path 
because of the unsafe feeling when leaving in the dark. Lighting would be a 
proactive solution to a potentially dangerous situation. 
$7,000.00 

b. Houk Road Bike Trail- The placement of two solar lights on Houk Road, 
midway between Central Ave and William St. Residents have requested 
lighting  because they feel unsafe in the area travelling on the bike path after 
dark. We propose lighting this section with solar lights as a safe solution to a 
currently unlit section of the bike path. 
$7,000.00 
 

6. Blue Limestone Basketball Courts-    $93,000.00 $93,800.00 
Working with the Community Coalition to build two new basketball courts. The 
courts will be concrete pads with sport court surfacing, benches and landscaping. 
The courts would withstand periodic flooding and require minimal post event 
cleanup. The Community Coalition would provide programming to attract youth, 
teen and adults. This cost will likely be reduced depending on the donations raised 
by the Community Coalition. The Recreation Levy Sub-Committee felt the cost of the 
courts was somewhat high for a single use, asked if the courts could have a multi-
use. Pickle ball is a potential use but before committing to this we would like to 
allow the courts to be dedicated to basketball for at least one year to before 
expanding the usage. Additional lines could later be added  to the surface to increase 
use on the court if needed. 

a. Concrete court- base material and court surface 
$50,000.00 

b. Flex Court Athletics- All weather outdoor court, ProStep with basketball lines 
and ramp edges. Two courts. 
$26,000.00  

c. FleXtreme fixed hoop with pad set and lifetime warranty 
$8,000.00 

d. Landscaping- shade trees, drainage &  seeding (performed by city staff) 
$4,000.00 



 
 

                                                                Page 4 of 6 

e. Benches- 4 benches around court perimeter 
$5,000.00 
 

7. Park Signage       $135,900.00$98,900.00 
a. Veterans Spray and Play sign 

(A2.1)- neighborhood Park ID sign 
(alternate)  
$5,000.00 

b. Bennett Park sign (A2)- 
neighborhood Park ID sign 

  $4,000.00 
c. Bennett Park Field ID sign 

$600.00 
d. Mingo Community Park ID sign 

(A1)- sign to replace existing sign, 
located further west along Lincoln 
Ave. 
$15,000.00 

 
e. Mingo Park Vehicular 

Directional sign (B2)-visitor 
directional signage with 
interchangeable panel for 
special events. 
$3,900.00 

 

 

 

 



 
 

                                                                Page 5 of 6 

f. Veterans Community Park ID (A1.4)- install 
new park sign. Park ID sign would display park 
sections. The City would discuss with the 
YMCA & National Guard to see if there was 
interest in sharing some of the cost of this sign. 
Committee unanimously felt the LED sign was 
not appropriate, specifically because the LED 
type of sign has not been allowed in past 
applications to the Planning Commission. 
$18,000.00 
 
 
 
 
 

g. Park Kiosk (E1)- locate 5 park kiosks at Smith, 
Mingo, Wetland, Veterans and Blue Limestone 
Parks. Signs used to display park map and for 
informational postings from the City of 
Delaware. The kiosks are estimated at $3,000 
each. 
$15,000.00 
 
 
 
 
 

h. Hidden Valley Golf Course Community 
Park ID (A12)- New sign at golf course 
entrance.  
$15,000.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

                                                                Page 6 of 6 

i. Oak Grove Cemetery- Community Park ID sign off Liberty Road. An updated 
entrance off Liberty Road is planned and placing a sign with the future 
entrance feature will be needed for access. 
$15,000.00 

j. Oak Grove Cemetery- Interactive Kiosk. The wayfinding plan identified an 
interactive kiosk to be placed at Oak Grove. The kiosk would assist cemetery 
visitors with locating plots, City contact information, and historical 
information. The kiosk would assist City staff in responding to public 
comments. The kiosk would be located near the main entrance off Sandusky 
St. 
$7,400.00 
 

9. Pickle ball equipment-       $10,000.00 
The growth of pickle ball has grown significantly and required us to adapt existing 
facilities to support multiple sports. We are currently adding striping to existing 
tennis courts at Smith Park. The proposed funding would allow us to add wind 
screens and permanent nets to the courts at Smith Park. Additionally, we would like 
to add striping to the indoor recreation courts at Mingo Recreation Center. The 
additions are minimal and allow us to use existing facilities to accommodate a 
growing recreational trend. 
 
 
 



RECREATION LEVY TOATL IMPROVEMENT EXPENDITURES

MAXIMUM AUTHORIZED $23,800,000RECREATION FACILITIES INCOME TAX
MAY 22, 2018  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total

Description Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual All Years

233-0233- 5230 Recreation Center Design 854,049 184,146 302,971 19,389 81,864 7,090 0 1,449,509

5500 Recreation Center Construction 0 3,671,426 7,617,202 521,650 222,289 0 0 12,032,567

5501 Houk Rd. Site Improvements 0 869,193 1,092,468 0 0 0 0 1,961,661

5501 Medrock Payment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  235,000 235,000

5510 Houk Rd. Park 0 530,001 17,445 17,702 0 0 0 565,148

5511 Smith Park 0 225,830 122,479 1,137,815 27,659 0 0 1,513,783

5512 Mingo Park 0 133,334 646,787 402,733 244,931 0 0 1,427,785

5513 Other Park Improvements 0 0 0 69,561 132,029 14,981 216,571

5520 Granato Land Purchase - Mingo Park 55,000 55,939 0 0 0 0 110,939

5521 National Guard City Alternatives 0 0 0 117,500 117,500

5522 Park Asphalt Projects 0 0 0 306,291 59,111 27,841  393,243

5523 Park Seal Coating Projects 0 0 0 36,025 100,894  136,919

5524 Smith Park Trail 0 0 0 27,461 3,699 205,818  236,978

5525 Park Irrigation 0 0 0 0 0 0

5526 Park Aeration 0 0 0 20,109 0  20,109

5527 Parks General Construction Projects 0 0 0 113,737 6,250 12,645 57,797 190,429

5528 Dog Park 0 0 0 32,354 34,003  66,357

5529 Drainage & Excavation Projects 0 0 0 2,608  2,608

5530 Miscellaneous Park Improvements 0 0 0 42,715 18,532 61,247

5531 Veterans Park Parking Lot Addition 0 0 0 337,203  337,203

5532 Wayfinding and Signage 0 0 0 0 21,160 2,590 23,750

5533 Veterans Park Restroom/Shelter 0 0 0 0 100,000 150,000  250,000

5534 Veterans Park Playtoy 0 0 0 0 152,551 94,449  247,000

5535 Splashpad Construction 0 0 0 5,300 479,956 51,627 12,791 34,302 583,976

5536 Parkland Acquisition/Improvement 0 0 0 0 722,272 428,577  1,150,849

5537 Park Improvements Contingency 0 0 0 3,040  3,040

5538 Pickelball 0 0 0 0 17,035 17,035

5710 In House Design 0 82,440 99,148 16,772 0 0 4,237  202,597

5720 Transfer to Park Exaction 0 0 0 400,000 138,000 0 0 538,000

  Total Park Improvements 909,049 5,752,309 9,898,500 2,585,622 846,772 1,066,414 1,680,008 970,957 110,280 271,892 24,091,803

4810 Expense Reimbursements (ONG) 0 0 306,307 57,749 18,690 72,000 212,722 450 0 0 667,918

  Net Levy Improvement Expenditures as of 5/22/18 23,423,885
  Available for Additional Expenditures up to Maximum of $23,800,000 376,115

    Total Rec Levy Improvement Expenditures 23,800,000

Account #



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-47    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       June 25, 2018 at 7:35 p.m.   
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST BY 
DELAWARE BIBLE CHURCH FOR A A TEMPORARY TRAILER (MODULAR 
CLASSROOM) ON APPROXIMATELY 7.53 ACRES ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 45 BELLE AVENUE.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-47 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT REQUEST BY DELAWARE BIBLE CHURCH FOR 
A TEMPORARY TRAILER (MODULAR CLASSROOM) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 7.53 ACRES ZONED R-3 (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 45 
BELLE AVENUE.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit request by Delaware Bible 
Church for approval of a Conditional Use Permit for a temporary trailer (modular 
classroom) on approximately 7.53 acres zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) and located at 45 Belle Avenue. (2018-1061).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit request by Delaware Bible 
Church for approval of a Conditional Use Permit for a temporary trailer (modular 
classroom) on approximately 7.53 acres zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) and located at 45 Belle Avenue, is hereby confirmed, approved and 
accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The proposed modular classroom shall be permitted for three years from the 
time of City Council approval. 

2. The proposed modular classroom shall achieve compliance with all building 
code requirements. 

3. The proposed modular classroom shall achieve compliance with all fire 
department requirements. 

4. The proposed modular classroom shall achieve compliance with all 
engineering requirements. 

5. Any proposed signage shall achieve compliance with the zoning code 
6. Any lighting shall achieve compliance with the zoning code and shall be 

approved by the Chief Building Official. 
7. All dead, damaged or diseased evergreen trees shall be replaced with a 

minimum  6 foot high evergreen trees at installation along the western 
property line to supplement the existing landscaping adjacent to the single 
family residential subdivision. 

8. The modular classroom shall be relocated to the north so the existing 
asphalt drive can encircle the subject structure to have 360 degree access 
per the fire department. 



9. The proposed security fence shall have gates that can be accessed by the 
Fire Department at the asphalt drive locations. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-48    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       June 25, 2018 at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING AMENDMENT REQUEST BY 
PLANNED COMMUNITIES INC. FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY FRANCIS AND 
MARY LOU WILGUS ON APPROXIMATELY 89.618 ACRES (PARCELS 419-220-
02-005-000 AND 419-220-02-007-000) FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) 
TO M-1 PMU (LIGHT MANUFACTURING WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 2781 AIRPORT ROAD LOCATED AT THE WESTERN 
TERMINUS OF SAWMILL PARKWAY, EAST OF SECTION LINE ROAD, SOUTH 
OF AIRPORT ROAD AND NORTH OF THE FUTURE EXTENDED SAWMILL 
PARKWAY.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-48 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING 
AMENDMENT REQUEST BY PLANNED COMMUNITIES 
INC. FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY FRANCIS AND MARY 
LOU WILGUS ON APPROXIMATELY 89.618 ACRES 
(PARCELS 419-220-02-005-000 AND 419-220-02-007-
000) FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO M-1 
PMU (LIGHT MANUFACTURING WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 2781 AIRPORT 
ROAD LOCATED AT THE WESTERN TERMINUS OF 
SAWMILL PARKWAY, EAST OF SECTION LINE ROAD, 
SOUTH OF AIRPORT ROAD AND NORTH OF THE 
FUTURE EXTENDED SAWMILL PARKWAY.    
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment request by Planned 
Communities Inc. for property owned by Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on 
approximately 89.618 acres (parcels 419220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-
000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to M-1 PMU (Light Manufacturing with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western 
terminus of Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport Road 
and north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway. (2018-0955).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment request by Planned 
Communities Inc. for property owned by Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on 
approximately 89.618 acres (parcels 419220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-
000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to M-1 PMU (Light Manufacturing with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 2781 Airport Road located at the western 
terminus of Sawmill Parkway, east of Section Line Road, south of Airport Road 
and north of the future extended Sawmill Parkway, is hereby confirmed, approved 
and accepted with the following conditions that: 
1. Any future non-residential development of the subject site shall require 

Preliminary and Final Subdivision Plat to subdivide the subject site into lots 
and Preliminary and Final Development Plan approval for each building and 
or development  

2. The existing farmhouse and associated out buildings can remain until the 
subject site is developed. 



3. The Applicant shall support the City should the City seek to annex City 
property adjacent to the Wilgus Annexation that includes approximately 
9.906 acres on parcel #419-220-02-007-001. 

4. Access to the Wilgus Annexation property shall be from Sawmill Parkway 
and at locations and access points as required by the City. 

5. Access to the property shall require the extension of Sawmill Parkway by the 
applicant or developer of the property in the absence of a development 
agreement and dedication at no cost to the City of required right-of-way by 
the Wilgus Annexation property as may be required by the City. 

6. Airport Road is anticipated to be abandoned and shall not be relied upon by 
the Wilgus Annexation property as public access as required by the City. 

7. The Wilgus Annexation property is anticipated to require significant storm 
sewer, sanitary sewer, and water line improvements a portion of which may 
be outside of the City jurisdiction.  The Applicant shall be required in the 
absence of a development agreement to obtain and pay for any and all 
necessary easements, permits, and construction activities that may be 
required in this regard. 

8. The City and applicant/owner/developer now or in the future may 
separately agree to enter into a specific development agreement stipulating 
any infrastructure development items or incentives for such that may be 
approved by both parties. 

9. Any future development Preliminary and Final Development Plan(s) shall 
require the subject developer to receive the “Determination of No Hazard to 
Air Navigation” approval from the FAA because the subject property is 
located within the Airport Overlay District. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 21    DATE: 6/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-49    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       June 25, 2018 at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST BY 
PLANNED COMMUNITIES INC. ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR 
PROPERTY OWNED BY FRANCIS AND MARY LOU WILGUS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 89.618 ACRES (PARCELS 419-220-02-005-000 AND 419-
220-02-007-000) AT 2781 AIRPORT ROAD LOCATED AT THE WESTERN 
TERMINUS OF SAWMILL PARKWAY, EAST OF SECTION LINE ROAD, SOUTH 
OF AIRPORT ROAD AND NORTH OF THE FUTURE EXTENDED SAWMILL 
PARKWAY.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-49 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT REQUEST BY PLANNED COMMUNITIES INC. 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY FRANCIS AND MARY LOU 
WILGUS ON APPROXIMATELY 89.618 ACRES (PARCELS 
419-220-02-005-000 AND 419-220-02-007-000) AT 
2781 AIRPORT ROAD LOCATED AT THE WESTERN 
TERMINUS OF SAWMILL PARKWAY, EAST OF SECTION 
LINE ROAD, SOUTH OF AIRPORT ROAD AND NORTH 
OF THE FUTURE EXTENDED SAWMILL PARKWAY.    
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit request by Planned 
Communities Inc. allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) to be established for Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on approximately 
89.618 acres (parcels 419220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-000) at 2781 
Airport Road located at the western terminus of Sawmill Parkway, east of Section 
Line Road, south of Airport Road and north of the future extended Sawmill 
Parkway (2018-0956).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit request by Planned 
Communities Inc. allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) to be established for Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus on approximately 
89.618 acres (parcels 419220-02-005-000 and 419-220-02-007-000) at 2781 
Airport Road located at the western terminus of Sawmill Parkway, east of Section 
Line Road, south of Airport Road and north of the future extended Sawmill 
Parkway, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 



 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  22    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-50    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       JUNE 25, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES 
(PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-002) FROM PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-50 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES 
(PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-002) 
FROM PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT) AND R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn on 
approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002) from 
PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 
239 West William Street (2018-1026).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for the Wesleyan Inn on 
approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002) from 
PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) and R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) to PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 and 
239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require conformance to 

all provisions of the Development Text and any conditions of approval. 
2. The proposed existing building and addition at 235 West William Street 

shall be for the proposed Inn use only and the property at 239 West William 
Street shall be for a parking lot or open space only. The property at 239 
West William Street shall have a covenant placed upon it to this effect.  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 



 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  23    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-51    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       June 25, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-04-002) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM 
STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-51 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-002) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
at 235 and 239 West William Street (2018-1027).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
at 235 and 239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  24    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-52    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.09 ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-002) ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I AND R-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-52 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR MANOS PROPERTIES FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE WESLEYAN INN ON APPROXIMATELY 1.09 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-433-04-005-000 AND 519-433-
04-002) ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I AND R-3 PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 235 
AND 239 WEST WILLIAM STREET.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
on property zoned  PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 
and 239 West William Street (2018-1028).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the a Preliminary Development Plan for the Wesleyan Inn 
on approximately 1.09 acres (parcels 519-433-04-005-000 and 519-433-04-002)  
on property zoned  PO/I and R-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 235 
and 239 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, approved and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The addition of the two-way left turn lane into the site shall require parking 
modifications along the north side of West William Street approved by the 
City Engineer.  Any modifications to parking shall include agreements from 
affected property owners adjacent to the roadway.  Any parking proposed to 
be eliminated must include agreements from the affected property owners 
and shall require approval of the Parking and Safety Committee.  Parking 
shall be maintained to the maximum extent practicable and include curb 
modifications to provide a widened area to allow parallel parking beyond the 
existing curb line.   All necessary associated improvements including, but 
not limited to, sidewalk and utility pole relocations, shall be made by the 
developer.  If agreements cannot be obtained from affected property owners 
or approval cannot be gained from the Parking and Safety Committee, street 



widening shall need to take place on the developer’s side of West William 
Street to allow for construction of the turn lane 

3. Because no public storm sewer exists adjacent to the site, a storm sewer 
extension shall be required to be designed and constructed by the 
developer.  Design of the storm sewer and any associated roadway 
restoration shall need to be approved by the Public Works Department and 
Public Utilities Department.   

4. An emergency access point shall be required on the south eastern portion of 
the site adjacent to the Ohio Wesleyan parking lot that is accessed off Oak 
Hill Avenue. An executed agreement by the subject property owner and Ohio 
Wesleyan University shall be recorded at the County prior to final 
occupancy. The exact type of connection and barrier shall be determined 
during the Final Development Plan approval process. 

5. The number of hotel rooms shall not exceed 43 rooms. 

6. The number of required parking spaces shall be 47 in accordance with 
development text and development plan. 

7. The dumpster shall be enclosed by brick or stone that matches the building 
with wood doors painted or stained to match. 

8. The proposed hotel building shall achieve compliance with the design 
standards of the approved development text.  

9. The exposed portion of the retaining wall shall be faced with Delaware blue 
vein limestone or equivalent as approved by staff. 

10. The applicant shall make a payment of $16,700 to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Requirements prior to construction drawing 
approval. 

11. Any street trees or other on-site trees damaged by construction shall be 
replaced. 

12. A six foot high solid wood fence shall be located along the western property 
line to screen the adjacent house while an eight foot high solid wood fence 
shall be located along the southwestern portion of the site to screen the 
adjacent residential zoned property. The landscaping shall be on the 
adjacent residential side of the fence along the west and southwestern 
property lines 

13. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

14. A lighting plan shall be documented in the Final Development Plan that 
achieves compliance with approved development text and minimum zoning 
requirements and shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 



15. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and shall 
achieve compliance with the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

16. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the minimum 
engineering, public works and fire department requirements.  

17. The subject two lots shall be consolidated into one lot prior to final 
occupancy permit. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



















































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 25    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-53    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN 
AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS 
CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 
PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-53 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA 
ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS 
CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 
158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF BRAUMILLER AND 
POLLOCK ROADS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended 
Preliminary Development Plan for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single 
family units on 158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads. (PC Case 2018-1173).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Amended Preliminary Development Plan request by 
Terra Alta LLC for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single family units on 
158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of Braumiller and 
Pollock Roads., is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following 
conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding 
the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. A second access point to the subdivision along Braumiller Road shall 
be required after 64 lots (during Phase 2 per submitted plans) or per 
the City Engineer for safety considerations. 

3. A dense landscape buffer along the eastern portion of the proposed 
cluster homes adjacent to the large lot single family residences shall 
be submitted and approved with the Final Development Plan. 

4. The subject application pertains to Phases 1-4 of the single family 
development and any future development of the Cluster Homes in 



Phase 5 shall require Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
approval. 

5. The Applicant shall provide a continuous buffer of 8 foot high at 
planting Norway spruce trees along the back of lots numbered 
currently 165-171 in Phase 3 of the development in order to 
adequately screen the adjacent property owner to the north in 
addition to preserving the tree line where it exists in this location 
already.  The Association of Homeowners shall be responsible for the 
maintenance and/or replacement of the Norway spruce trees. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  26    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-54    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN 
AMENDED PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STOCKDALE FARMS 
CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 
PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS. 
 
BACKGRUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-54 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA 
ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STOCKDALE FARMS 
CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 
158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF BRAUMILLER AND 
POLLOCK ROADS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval a request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single 
family units on 158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads. (2018-1174).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Amendment to the Preliminary Subdivision Plat 
request by Terra Alta LLC for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single family 
units on 158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads., is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding 
the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. In addition, County Engineer’s approval 
would be required for roadway and storm water issues that are 
located within their jurisdiction. 

2. All the streets shall achieve compliance with the minimum radii 
requirements or per the City Engineer. 

3. All public utilities shall be extended to stub to the adjacent property 
lines and appropriate phases within the development. 



4. The developer shall be responsible for any improvements and/or 
financial obligations of the traffic impact study per the City Engineer 
and/or County Engineer. 

5. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be 
collected with each building permit for needed area transportation 
improvements. 

6. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 

7. The proposed bike path along Braumiller Road and along the stream 
bed shall be installed per City requirements within an easement 
dedicated to the City and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association. The bike path along the stream bed shall be constructed 
during subject phase it is located in. The bike path along Braumiller 
Road shall be constructed with the roadway improvements during the 
subject Phase it is located in.  

8. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. 
Sidewalks are not required to be extended along Pollock Road due to 
topographic and area considerations that make a pedestrian 
connection along Pollock infeasible. However, at least one sidewalk 
shall be extended from the western portion of the subdivision to 
Pollock Road to provide a connection to the river parkland. The 
sidewalk shall be constructed during the subject Phase it is located 
in.  

9. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements in the approved development text. 

10. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum 
architectural standards in the approved development text and per 
applicable sections of the current zoning code. 

11. A minimum 3-6 foot high mound with landscaping shall be located 
along Braumiller Road except adjacent to lots 88-90 in Phase 2. An 
easement on the rear of lots 88-90 shall be recorded to require the 
aforementioned mounding and landscaping. 

12. The maintenance of all mounds, landscaping and amenities in the 
parkland and open space areas shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association with an easement to the City dedicating 
them open to the public. In addition, all evergreen trees shall be a 
minimum 6 foot high at installation and the deciduous trees shall be 
a minimum 1.75 inch caliper. 

13. Landscaping shall be installed adjacent to the proposed detention 
basin along Pollock Road. 



14. All landscape plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

15. The 4.06 acre open space along the Olentangy River shall be 
dedicated to the City with Phase 1 of the Final Subdivision Plat. 

16. For each single family house, a $500 fee shall be paid for each single-
family lot at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance 
with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

17. For each cluster home unit, $200 fee shall be paid for each cluster 
home unit at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance 
with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

18. The 1.85 acre tot lot shall be graded relatively flat to be a usable play 
area (soccer, baseball, football fields). 

19. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Chief Building Official achieves compliance with all zoning 
requirements prior to construction drawing approval. 

20. A comprehensive sign plan with all permanent and temporary signage 
including all public opens spaces shall be submitted reviewed and 
approved prior construction drawing approval. 

21. The proposed phasing of the development shall be reviewed by staff to 
ensure roadway connectivity for Phase 1. 

22. Conservation easements shall be provided over the entire length of all 
the existing streams on the site and shall be recorded with each final 
plat. 

23. The 4.06 acre open space along the Olentangy River shall be 
dedicated to the City with Phase 1 of the Final Subdivision Plat. 

24. The Applicant shall provide a continuous buffer of 8 foot high at 
planting Norway spruce trees along the back of lots numbered 
currently 165-171 in Phase 3 of the development in order to 
adequately screen the adjacent property owner to the north in 
addition to preserving the tree line where it exists in this location 
already.  The Association of Homeowners shall be responsible for the 
maintenance and/or replacement of the Norway spruce trees. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 



 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  27    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-55    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN 
AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS PHASE 1 
CONSISTING OF 66 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 42.414 
ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-55 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA 
ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS PHASE 1 
CONSISTING OF 66 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 42.414 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU 
(ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a request by Terra Alta LLC an Amended Final 
Development Plan for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family 
lots on approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast 
corner of Braumiller and Pollock Roads. (2018-1176).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Amended Final Development Plan request by Terra 
Alta LLC for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on 
approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads., is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding 
the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. A second access point to the subdivision along Braumiller Road shall 
be required after 66 lots are developed (during Phase 2 per submitted 
plans) or per the City Engineer for safety considerations. 

3. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be 
collected with each building permit for needed area transportation 
improvements. 

4. For each single family house, a $500 fee shall be paid for each single-
family lot at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance 
with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 



 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  28    DATE: 6/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-56    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN 
AMENDED FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STOCKDALE FARMS PHASE 1 
CONSISTING OF 66 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 42.414 
ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-56 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA 
ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR STOCKDALE FARMS PHASE 1 
CONSISTING OF 66 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 42.414 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU 
(ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
BRAUMILLER AND POLLOCK ROADS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Final 
Subdivision Plat for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots 
on approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads (2018-1177).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That the Amended Final Subdivision Plat request by Terra 
Alta LLC for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on 
approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located at the northeast corner of 
Braumiller and Pollock Roads., be the same and is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. In addition, County Engineer’s approval would 
be required for roadway and storm water issues that are located within 
their jurisdiction. 

2. All the streets shall achieve compliance with the minimum radii 
requirements or per the City Engineer. 

3. All public utilities shall be extended to stub to the adjacent property lines 
and appropriate phases within the development. 

4. The developer shall be responsible for any roadway improvements and/or 
financial obligations of the traffic impact study per the City Engineer 
and/or County Engineer. 



5. A $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation contribution fee shall be 
collected with each building permit for needed area transportation 
improvements. 

6. The off-site stormwater improvements shall comply with the minimum 
City and County regulations. 

7. The proposed bike path along Braumiller Road and along the stream bed 
shall be installed per City requirements within an easement dedicated to 
the City and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. The 
bike path along the stream bed shall be constructed during subject 
phase it is located in. The bike path along Braumiller Road shall be 
constructed with the roadway improvements during the subject Phase it 
is located in.  

8. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. Sidewalks 
are not required to be extended along Pollock Road due to topographic 
and area considerations that make a pedestrian connection along Pollock 
infeasible. However, at least one sidewalk shall be extended from the 
western portion of the subdivision to Pollock Road to provide a 
connection to the river parkland. The sidewalk shall be constructed 
during the subject Phase it is located in.  

9. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements in the approved development text. 

10. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards in the approved development text and per applicable sections 
of the current zoning code. 

11. A minimum 3-6 foot high mound (where grade allows) with landscaping 
shall be located along Braumiller Road. 

12. The maintenance of all mounds, landscaping and amenities in the 
parkland and open space areas shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association with an easement to the City dedicating them 
open to the public. In addition, all evergreen trees shall be a minimum 
6 foot high at installation and the deciduous trees shall be a minimum 
1.75 inch caliper. 

13. The 1.851 acre pocket park shall be graded relatively flat to be a usable 
play area (soccer, baseball, football fields). 

14. All landscape plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

15. The 4.06 acre open space along the Olentangy River shall be dedicated 
to the City with Phase 1 of the Final Subdivision Plat. 

16. For each single family house, a $500 fee shall be paid for each single-
family lot at time of building permit issuance to achieve compliance 
with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

17. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Chief Building Official achieves compliance with all zoning 
requirements prior to engineering drawing approval. 

18. Conservation easements shall be provided over the entire length of all 
the existing streams within Phase 1and shall be recorded. 



19. A temporary emergency access point shall be located from Braumiller 
Road north between lots 15 and 16 to Skipton Loop. The design and 
access of the emergency access point shall achieve compliance with the 
fire department requirements. When Phase 1, 2 and 3 are completed, 
the aforementioned emergency access point can be converted to a bike 
path or the like to be determined by the Homeowners Association. 

20. A Del Co water line transverses the rear of lots 4-6 which could impact 
the building pads of the future houses and shall limit the construction 
of any accessory structures (decks, etc.) on these lots.   

  
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  29    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-57    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY 
MEDROCK LLC FOR WILLOWBROOK SECTION 2, PHASES 1-3 (OLD ADALEE 
PARK SECTION 3) CONSISTING OF 85 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 28.5 ACRES ZONED R-3 PUD (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) AND LOCATED NORTH OF 
BOULDER DRIVE, SOUTH OF COBBLESTONE DRIVE, EAST OF HARMONY 
DRIVE AND WEST OF CANAL STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-57 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN REQUEST BY MEDROCK LLC FOR 
WILLOWBROOK SECTION 2, PHASES 1-3 (OLD ADALEE 
PARK SECTION 3) CONSISTING OF 85 SINGLE FAMILY 
LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 28.5 ACRES ZONED R-3 
PUD (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT) AND LOCATED NORTH OF 
BOULDER DRIVE, SOUTH OF COBBLESTONE DRIVE, 
EAST OF HARMONY DRIVE AND WEST OF CANAL 
STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan request by Medrock LLC, for 
Willowbrook Section 2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 
single family lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One-Family 
Residential with a Planned Unit Development) and located north of Boulder Drive, 
south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal Street. (PC 
2018-1219). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan request by Medrock LLC, for 
Willowbrook Section 2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 
single family lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One-Family 
Residential with a Planned Unit Development) and located north of Boulder Drive, 
south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal Street. is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The developer shall construct Boulder Drive, Minton Drive, Pagoda Loop, 
Limestone Court and Broswell Street per the submitted plat for Section 
3. 

3. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements per the plat. 



4. The minimum house size for a one story house shall be 1,400 square feet 
and 1,800 square feet for a two-story house per the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

5. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards per Chapter 1171.08 Residential Development Design Criteria 
and Performance Standards. 

6. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

7. A tree survey shall be required for the subject Phase and any tree 
removal and/or replacement shall achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

8. The subject open space, bike path and landscaping shall be maintained 
by the HOA with an easement to allow for public use. 

9. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 
requirements. 

10. The HOA declarations and covenants for this subject section shall not 
preclude the possibility of merging with the existing Adalee Park HOA 
should the Adalee Park HOA wish to do that when this new section is 
turned over to resident control by the developer 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  30    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-58    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
MEDROCK LLC FOR WILLOWBROOK SECTION 2, PHASES 1-3 (OLD ADALEE 
PARK SECTION 3) CONSISTING OF 85 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 28.5 ACRES ZONED R-3 PUD (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) AND IS LOCATED NORTH OF 
BOULDER DRIVE, SOUTH OF COBBLESTONE DRIVE, EAST OF HARMONY 
DRIVE AND WEST OF CANAL STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-58 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY MEDROCK LLC FOR 
WILLOWBROOK SECTION 2, PHASES 1-3 (OLD ADALEE 
PARK SECTION 3) CONSISTING OF 85 SINGLE FAMILY 
LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 28.5 ACRES ZONED R-3 
PUD (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT) AND IS LOCATED NORTH OF 
BOULDER DRIVE, SOUTH OF COBBLESTONE DRIVE, 
EAST OF HARMONY DRIVE AND WEST OF CANAL 
STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC for 
Willowbrook Section 2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 
single family lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One-Family 
Residential with a Planned Unit Development) and is located north of Boulder 
Drive, south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal 
Street. (PC 2018-1220).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by Medrock LLC for 
Willowbrook Section 2, Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3) consisting of 85 
single family lots on approximately 28.5 acres zoned R-3 PUD (One-Family 
Residential with a Planned Unit Development) and is located north of Boulder 
Drive, south of Cobblestone Drive, east of Harmony Drive and west of Canal Street 
is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The developer shall construct Boulder Drive, Minton Drive, Pagoda Loop, 
Limestone Court and Broswell Street per the submitted plat for Section 
3. 

3. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and setback 
requirements per the plat. 



4. The minimum house size for a one story house shall be 1,400 square feet 
and 1,800 square feet for a two-story house per the approved 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

5. The single family houses shall comply with the minimum architectural 
standards per Chapter 1171.08 Residential Development Design Criteria 
and Performance Standards. 

6. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

7. A tree survey shall be required for the subject Phase and any tree 
removal and/or replacement shall achieve compliance with Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations. 

8. The subject open space, bike path and landscaping shall be maintained 
by the HOA with an easement to allow for public use. 

9. The street lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Chief Building Official and achieve compliance with all zoning 
requirements. 

10. The HOA declarations and covenants for this subject section shall not 
preclude the possibility of merging with the existing Adalee Park HOA 
should the Adalee Park HOA wish to do that when this new section is 
turned over to resident control by the developer 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 









































FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  31  DATE: 06/11/2018 

ORDINANCE NO: 18-59  RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY 
PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON PHASE 7 CONSISTING OF 28 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 7.198 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED WEST OF HOUK ROAD, NORTH OF BOULDER DRIVE AND 
SOUTH OF BENJAMIN DRIVE. 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-59 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN REQUEST BY PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON 
PHASE 7 CONSISTING OF 28 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 7.198 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED WEST OF HOUK ROAD, 
NORTH OF BOULDER DRIVE AND SOUTH OF 
BENJAMIN DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 7 consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 
acres zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) 
and located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive south of Benjamin Drive. 
(PC 2018-1240).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 7 consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 
acres zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) 
and located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive south of Benjamin Drive. is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department.  

2. A contribution in the amount of $75,000 shall be made to the 
Transportation Trust Fund for future design and construction of one or 
more intersection improvements which could include future 
signalization, enhanced pedestrian crossings of South Houk Road and 
other pedestrian pathway safety projects.  The enhanced pedestrian 
crossings are to be installed by the City at a future date at any location 
along South Houk Road between US36 and the at-grade railroad 
crossing.  The contribution amount may be reduced by the value of 
public safety improvements made along the same portion of South Houk 
Road by the developer as determined necessary by the City. 



3. A public sidewalk shall be required along all public streets. 

4. The bike path on the west side of Houk Road shall be extended to 
Boulder Drive and shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

5. The houses shall achieve compliance the minimum Residential Design 
Standards Criteria and Performance Standards of Section 1171.08 of the 
Planning and Zoning Code.  

6. The minimum houses sizes shall be 1,500 square feet for a ranch style 
and 1,800 square feet for a two story structure both for a 3 bedroom unit 
with any additional bedroom adding 200 square feet to the totals per our 
base code for each phase and section. 

7. The existing mound along the Houk Road shall be extended to Boulder 
Drive and shall be landscaped to match the existing mound and 
landscaping north of this phase. The entire mound with landscaping is 
located within a 30 foot easement along Houk Road which shall be 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. At a minimum this area 
shall be placed on regular maintenance program including, mowing, 
replacing dead landscaping and mulching at least annually. 

8. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission for Phase 7. 

9. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall be 
submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official for each 
Phase and Section. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 32    DATE: 06/11/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-60    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON PHASE 7 CONSISTING OF 28 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 7.198 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED WEST OF HOUK ROAD, NORTH OF BOULDER DRIVE AND SOUTH 
OF BENJAMIN DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on June 6, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-60 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON 
PHASE 7 CONSISTING OF 28 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 7.198 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED WEST OF HOUK ROAD, 
NORTH OF BOULDER DRIVE AND SOUTH OF 
BENJAMIN DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of June 6, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 7 consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 
acres zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) 
and located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive and south of Benjamin 
Drive (PC 2018-1242). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 7 consisting of 28 single family lots on approximately 7.198 
acres zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) 
and located west of Houk Road, north of Boulder Drive and south of Benjamin 
Drive is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions 
that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department.  

2. A contribution in the amount of $75,000 shall be made to the 
Transportation Trust Fund for future design and construction of one or 
more enhanced pedestrian crossings of South Houk Road.  The 
enhanced pedestrian crossings are to be installed by the City at a future 
date at any location along South Houk Road between US 36 and the at-
grade railroad crossing.  The contribution amount may be reduced by 
the value of public safety improvements made along the same portion of 
South Houk Road by the developer as determined necessary by the City. 

3. A public sidewalk shall be required along all public streets. 



4. The bike path on the west side of Houk Road shall be extended to 
Boulder Drive and shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

5. The houses shall achieve compliance the minimum Residential Design 
Standards Criteria and Performance Standards of Section 1171.08 of the 
Planning and Zoning Code.  

6. The minimum houses sizes shall be 1,500 square feet for a ranch style 
and 1,800 square feet for a two story structure both for a 3 bedroom unit 
with any additional bedroom adding 200 square feet to the totals per our 
base code for each phase and section. 

7. The existing mound along the Houk Road shall be extended to Boulder 
Drive and shall be landscaped to match the existing mound and 
landscaping north of this phase. The entire mound with landscaping is 
located within a 30 foot easement along Houk Road which shall be 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. At a minimum this area 
shall be placed on regular maintenance program including, mowing, 
replacing dead landscaping and mulching at least annually. 

8. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission for Phase 7. 

9. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall be 
submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official for each 
Phase and Section. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























City Manager Report 20180611 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: June 7, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 May 8  
 * Entrepreneur Center Advisory Board Meeting 
 * Olentangy Berlin High School Tour 
 May 9 
 * Olentangy Berlin High School Tour 
 May 10 
 * Citizens Academy 
 May 14 
 * City Council Meeting 
 * Rotary 
 * 25th Anniversary of State Partnership with Hungary and Ohio 
 May 15 
 * Strand Board Meeting 
 May 16 
 * Preservation Parks Strategic Planning 
 May 18 
 * MOMA meeting 
 * Hayes House Games 
 May 21 
 * Rotary 
 * Council  
 May 29 
 * Recreation Sub-Committee Meeting (Ms. Walker) 
 June 1 
 * COMMA Meeting 
 June 5 
 * Strand Balcony Dedication 



City Manager Report 20180611 

 June 6 
 * Heritage Ohio Training 
  
  



June 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
   Civil Service 3 pm 

Planning 7pm 
   

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 City Council 7pm  BZA 7pm    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 Parking & Safety 6pm Parks and Rec 7pm     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 City Council 7pm Shade Tree 7pm HPC 7pm    

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – June 11, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
CHA Consulting Ltd. Airport Professional Consulting 

Services 
N/A Public Works 

The Righter Company, Inc. West Central Bikeway 333,525.17 Public Works 
Delaware County LEADS Information Exchange 

Agreement 
0.00 Police 

Delaware County Homeland 
Security And Emergency 
Management 

Amended agreement for 
Countywide Emergency 
Management Agency 

2/3 Cost 
based on 
Population 
Contract 
Amount 

Fire 

ODOT Amendment to Traffic Signal 
Maintenance Agreement between 
ODOT and City 

O.00 Public Works 

Trigg Industries, LLC Over Height Vehicle Detection 
Project 

93,448.00 Public Works 

MT Business Technologies, Inc. New Xerox copier annual 
maintenance contract 

$34,050.00 IT 

Burgess  & Niple Curve Road Landfill Leachate 
Collection Syster Plan & 
Operations Update  

14,130 Public Works 

City of Delaware 2018 Summer Street Maintenance 
Work Schedule MOU 

0.00 Public Works 

Norfolk Southern Railway Co. Agreement for Preliminary 
Engineering Services 

15,000 Public Works 

MT Business Techologies, Inc. Managed Print Services Program Budgeted 
$500.00 

IT 

SourcePoint Business Associate Ageement 0.00 Fire 
Julian & Grube, Inc. 2017 CAFT and PAFR Technical 

Assistance 
$16,700.00 Finance 



Organized Crime Drug 
Enforcement Task Force 

Allow the Police Depart 
participation in OCDETF task force 
overtime reimbursement program 

10,000 Police 

ODOT The Point LPA Agreement N/A Public Works 
ODOT  West Central Overheight Detection-

Revised LPA agreement 
N/A Public Works 

Habitec Installation and monitoring of Fire 
Rated Cell Unit for the City Hall 
Annex 

N/A CMO 

Ohio Valley Integration Services Annual maintenance of the fire 
alarm systems at all Fire Stations 

$1,089.00 Fire 

    
 


	01 20180611 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20180514 council minutes
	03 20180521 special council minutes
	04 20180417 parb minutes
	05 20170227 rec levy minutes
	06 20180502 civil service minutes
	07 201800502 planning minutes
	08 fact sheet res 18 -30, Fish with a Cop ODNR Agreement
	09 res 18- 30,  Fish with a Cop
	10 FY19 Aq Ed Grant Subsidy Agreement
	11 fact sheet res 18 -31,  DCBDD M.O.U.
	12 res 18- 31, DCBDD MOU - Safety Town
	13 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING - SAFETY TOWN - ECP - Acceptance
	14 fact sheet res 18-32, intergovern agree for backup
	15 res No 18-32, intergov agree for backup bldg services
	16 city-county.cbo.inspection.3.8.2018
	AGREEMENT
	SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES
	SECTION 2 – BASIS OF PAYMENT
	SECTION 3-GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS


	17 Fact Sheet Res 18-33 US-23 & Hawthorn Blvd  ODOT Traffic Signal Agreemen...
	18 Res 18-33 US-23 & Hawthorn Blvd  ODOT Traffic Signal Agreement
	19 Exhibit A
	20 Exhibit B
	21 hidden valley golf course liquor permit
	23 fact sheet ord 18-37,  accept annex wilgus
	24 ord 18-37,  accept annex wilgus
	25 Wilgus annexation petition
	26 map of territory-wilgus
	27 Petition for Annexation
	28 Wilgus Annexation Granting of prayer
	29 res 18-08, res of services wilgus annex
	30 fact sheet res 18-29, JEDD Berkshire
	31 res 18-29, JEDD Berkshire
	32 JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CONTRACT - Final
	ARTICLE I
	DEFINITIONS
	Section 1.1 Definitions.  In addition to “Contract”, “City”, “State” and “Township” defined above, the following capitalized words and terms shall have the following meanings:
	“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the JEDD established in accordance with the JEDD Statutes and this Contract.
	“County” means the County of Delaware, Ohio.
	“Effective Date” means the date immediately succeeding the occurrence of all of the following:  (i) the City’s and Township’s execution of this Contract, (ii) the thirty-second day after the adoption of the Township’s resolution authorizing this Contr...
	“Gross Revenues” means the proceeds of the JEDD Income Tax, less refunds.
	“Net Revenues” means Gross Revenues less (a) to the extent the funds available to the Board are insufficient for such purposes, any amount required to pay costs of any audits of the JEDD mandated by the State or any liability imposed on the JEDD or th...
	“JEDD” means the Berkshire Joint Economic Development District No. 2 created pursuant to the JEDD Statutes and this Contract and includes the real property described and depicted in Exhibit A to this Contract.
	“JEDD Income” means (i) the income earned by persons working  or residing in the JEDD and (ii) the net profits of businesses located in the JEDD.
	“JEDD Income Tax” means the tax on JEDD Income levied by the Board in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.
	“JEDD Income Tax Agreement” means that agreement to be entered into by and between the Board and the City providing for the City to (i) administer, collect and distribute the JEDD Income Tax in accordance with the Contract and (ii) act as the fiscal a...
	“JEDD Statutes” means Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72.
	Section 1.2 Interpretations.  Any reference herein to the County, the City, the Township or the Board or to any officer or employee of the County, the City, the Township or the Board, includes the entities, officers or employees succeeding to their re...
	ARTICLE VI

	33  Delaware JEDD Map 2
	34 JEDD - Notice of Public Hearing
	35 JEDD public hearing notice receipt
	36 fact sheet ord 18-43, 2018-0642 AEP CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT).

	37 ord 18-43 , 2018-0642 AEP CUP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT).

	38 fact sheet ord 18-44, 2018-0643 AEP CPFDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRI...

	39 ord 18-44 , 2018-0643 AEP CPFDP
	AN ORDINANCE FOR AEP FOR APPROVAL OF A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A NEW SERVICE CENTER BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 50 ACRES LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF SLACK ROAD AND JUST WEST OF THE RAILROAD TRACKS ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 (AGRI...

	40 2018-0642-0643 AEP CUP CPFDP Report
	41 fact sheet res 18 -34 carbon tax
	42 res 18- 34,  carbon fees
	43 USE DRAFT Resolution for City Council - Feb 8, 2018
	44 20180607145620538
	45 20180607150237555
	46 fact sheet res 18-35  comprehensive plan committee
	47 res 18-35  comprehensive plan committee
	48 steering committee appointment attachments_6_11_18
	50 fact sheet res 18-36,  res of services boy scouts of america annex
	51 res 18-36  res of services boy scouts of america
	52 Boy Scouts of America Annexation Petition
	53 Camp Lazarus Annexation - Aerial Map
	54 Camp Lazarus Annexation - Location Map
	55 Camp Lazarus Annexation - Comp Map
	56 Fact Sheet ord 18- 45 Supplemental Appropriation for Road Salt  Brine Applicator
	57 ord 18- 45, Supplemental Appropriation for Road Salt  Brine Applicator
	58 Brine Distributor
	59 fact sheet ord 18-46, rec levy balance
	60 ord 18-46 accept rec of recreation subcom
	61 Rec Levy Memorandum- 5.23.18-with updates
	62 Total Cummulative Expenditures May 22 2018
	63 factsheet ord 18-47 , CUP 2018-1061 Delaware Bible Church Temp Trailer
	64 ord 18-47  , 2018-1061 Delaware Bible Church Temp Trailer
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-47
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	65 PC 2018-1061 CUP Delaware Bible Church Report
	66 factsheet ord 18-48 , rezone 2018-0955 Wilgus Property
	67 ord 18-48, rezone 2018-0955 Wilgus Property
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-48
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	68 factsheet ord 18-49 , CUP 2018-0956 Wilgus Property
	69 ord 18-49, CUP 2018-0956 Wilgus Property
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-49
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	70 PC 2018-0955-0956 Planned Communities - Copy
	71 fact sheed ord 18 -50 , rezone 2018-1026 The Weselyan Inn
	72 ord 18 -50 , 2018-1026- rezone The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-50
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	73 factsheet ord 18-51, CUP 2018-1027 The Weselyan Inn
	74 ord 18-51 , CUP 2018-1027- The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-51
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	75 fact sheet ord 18-52, pdp 2018-1028 The Weselyan Inn
	76 ord 18-52, pdp 2018-1028- The Wesleyan Inn
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-52
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	77  PC 2018-1026-1028 Manos Properties
	78 20180606 planning wolber public comment
	79 factsheet ord 18-53,  APDP  018-1173 Stockdale Farms
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DIS...

	80 ord 18-53 , APDP 2018-1173 Stockdale Farms
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single family units on 158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay Dis...

	81 fact sheet ord 18-54, APSP 2018-1174 Stockdale Farms
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR STOCKDALE FARMS CONSISTING OF 322 SINGLE FAMILY UNITS ON 158.3 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DIS...

	82 ord 18-54 , 2018-1174 Stockdale Farms APSP
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Preliminary Subdivision Plat for Stockdale Farms consisting of 322 single family units on 158.3 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay Dis...

	83 fact sheet ord 18-55 , AFDP 2018-1176 Stockdale Farms Phase 1
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST BY TERRA ALTA LLC FOR AN AMENDED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STOCKDALE FARMS PHASE 1 CONSISTING OF 66 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 42.414 ACRES ZONED R-2 PMU (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED ...

	84 ord 18-55, AFDP 2018-1176 Stockdale Farms Phase 1
	AN ORDINANCE Approving a request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Final Development Plan for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed ...

	85 fact sheet ord 18-56 , AFSP 2018-1177 Stockdale Farms Phase 1
	86 ord 18-56 , AFSP 2018-1177 Stockdale Farms Phase 1
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A request by Terra Alta LLC for an Amended Final Subdivision Plat for Stockdale Farms Phase 1 consisting of 66 single family lots on approximately 42.414 acres zoned R-2 PMU (One Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed ...

	87 PC 2018-1173-1174 & 1176-1177 Terra Alta LLC
	88 fact sheet ord 18-57 , FDP 2018-1219 Willowbrook Section 2 Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3)
	89 ord 18-57, FDP 2018-1219 Willowbrook Section 2 Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3)
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-57
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	90 fact sheet ord 18-58 , FSP 2018-1220 Willowbrook Section 2 Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3)
	91 ord 18-58, FSP 2018-1220 Willowbrook Section 2 Phases 1-3 (Old Adalee Park Section 3)
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-58
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	92 PC 2018-1219-20 fdp fsdp Willowbrook Sec 2 - Copy
	93 fact sheet ord 18-59 , FDP 2018-1240 Heatherton Phase 7
	94 ord 18-59, FDP 2018-1240 Heatherton Phase 7 FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-59
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	95 fact sheet ord 18-60, FSP 2018-1242 Heatherton Phase 7 FSP
	AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON PHASE 7 CONSISTING OF 28 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 7.198 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED WEST ...

	96 ord 18-60, FSP 2018-1242 Heatherton Phase 7 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-60
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	97 PC 2018-1240&1242 Pulte Homes of Ohio
	98 city managers report 20180611
	99 June Calendar 2018
	100 20180611Contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – June 11, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Public Works
	N/A
	CHA Consulting Ltd.
	Airport Professional Consulting Services

	Public Works
	333,525.17
	The Righter Company, Inc.
	West Central Bikeway

	Police
	0.00
	Delaware County
	LEADS Information Exchange Agreement

	Fire
	2/3 Cost based on Population Contract Amount
	Delaware County Homeland Security And Emergency Management
	Amended agreement for Countywide Emergency Management Agency

	Public Works
	ODOT
	Amendment to Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement between ODOT and City

	Public Works
	93,448.00
	Trigg Industries, LLC
	Over Height Vehicle Detection Project

	IT
	$34,050.00
	MT Business Technologies, Inc.
	New Xerox copier annual maintenance contract

	Public Works
	14,130
	Burgess  & Niple
	Curve Road Landfill Leachate Collection Syster Plan & Operations Update 

	Public Works
	0.00
	City of Delaware
	2018 Summer Street Maintenance Work Schedule MOU

	Public Works
	15,000
	Norfolk Southern Railway Co.
	Agreement for Preliminary Engineering Services

	IT
	Budgeted $500.00
	MT Business Techologies, Inc.
	Managed Print Services Program

	Fire
	0.00
	SourcePoint
	Business Associate Ageement

	Finance
	$16,700.00
	Julian & Grube, Inc.
	2017 CAFT and PAFR Technical Assistance

	Police
	10,000
	Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force
	Allow the Police Depart participation in OCDETF task force overtime reimbursement program

	Public Works
	N/A
	ODOT
	The Point LPA Agreement

	Public Works
	N/A
	ODOT 
	West Central Overheight Detection-Revised LPA agreement

	CMO
	N/A
	Habitec
	Installation and monitoring of Fire Rated Cell Unit for the City Hall Annex

	Fire
	$1,089.00
	Ohio Valley Integration Services
	Annual maintenance of the fire alarm systems at all Fire Stations



